

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Sixty-second Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, April 25, 2011

The Senate convened at 8:00 a.m., with President Wrigley presiding.

The prayer was offered by Representative Eliot Glassheim, District 18.

The roll was called and all members were present except Senator Marcellais.

A quorum was declared by the President.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. DEVER MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1126 as printed on SJ pages 1640-1641 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1126, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1126: A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 26.1-54 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the creation of an American health benefit exchange; to provide reports to the legislative management; to provide an appropriation; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 31 YEAS, 15 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Grindberg; Heckaman; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Lee, J.; Luick; Mathern; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schneider; Sorvaag; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wardner; Warner

NAYS: Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Freborg; Hogue; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lyson; Miller; O'Connell; Schaible; Sitte; Stenehjerm; Wanzek

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Marcellais

Engrossed HB 1126, as amended, passed but the emergency clause failed.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SORVAAG MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1447 as printed on SJ pages 1641-1645 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1447, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

MOTION

SEN. STENEHJEM MOVED that the Senate stand in recess until 9:15 a.m., which motion prevailed.

THE SENATE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with President Wrigley presiding.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1447: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 16.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the appointment of poll checkers; to amend and reenact sections 16.1-02-05, 16.1-05-04, 16.1-05-07, 16.1-10-06.1, and 58-04-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to verification of eligibility of voters; to

repeal section 16.1-05-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to challenging the right to vote; to provide for a legislative management study; and to provide a penalty.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 8 YEAS, 38 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Dever; Erbele; Freborg; Sitte; Sorvaag; Wanzek

NAYS: Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dotzenrod; Fischer; Flakoll; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wardner; Warner

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Marcellais

Engrossed HB 1447, as amended, lost.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. OEHLKE MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed SB 2320 as printed on SJ page 1640 be laid on the table, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

MOTION

SEN. STENEHJEM MOVED that the vote by which the conference committee report on SB 2320 was laid on the table be reconsidered and the motion to reconsider be laid on the table, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has laid on the table: SB 2320.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause failed to pass: HB 1126.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed to pass: HB 1447.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1248.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2056.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1014, HB 1025, HB 1047, HB 1194.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate stand in recess until 1:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE SENATE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with President Wrigley presiding.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1248, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schaible, G. Lee, Marcellais and Reps. Karls, Sanford, Hunsakor) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1203, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1248 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1203 of the House Journal and page 904 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1248 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact chapter 15.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to entry into the compact on educational opportunity for military children; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-01 and 15.1-21-02.1 and subsection 1 of section 15.1-29-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the age of school admission, the issuance of high school diplomas, and the charging of tuition; to provide for a report; to provide a funding source; and to provide an expiration date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. Chapter 15.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

15.1-04.1-01. Compact on educational opportunity for military children.

The compact on educational opportunity for military children is entered with all jurisdictions legally joining therein, in the form substantially as follows:

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this compact to remove barriers to educational success imposed on children of military families because of frequent moves and deployment of their parents by:

1. Facilitating the timely enrollment of children of military families and ensuring that they are not placed at a disadvantage due to difficulty in the transfer of educational records from a sending to a receiving school district or variations in entrance or age requirements;
2. Facilitating the student placement process to ensure that children of military families are not disadvantaged by variations in attendance requirements, scheduling, sequencing, grading, course content, or assessment;
3. Facilitating the qualification and eligibility of children of military families for enrollment, educational programs, and participation in extracurricular academic, athletic, and social activities;
4. Facilitating the on-time graduation of children of military families;
5. Providing for the promulgation and enforcement of administrative rules implementing this compact;
6. Providing for the uniform collection and sharing of information among member states, school districts, and military families under this compact;
7. Promoting coordination between this compact and other compacts affecting the children of military families; and
8. Promoting flexibility and cooperation between the educational system, parents, and the student in order to achieve educational success for the children of military families.

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

As used in this compact, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Active duty" means full-time duty status in the active uniformed services of the United States, including members of the national guard and reserve on active duty orders pursuant to 10 U.S.C. 1209 and 1211.

2. "Children of military families" means school-aged children, enrolled in kindergarten through grade twelve, in the household of an active duty member.
3. "Commission" means the commission that is created under article IX of this compact.
4. "Compact commissioner" means the voting representative of each compacting state appointed pursuant to article VIII of this compact.
5. "Deployment" means the period one month before the service member's departure from the home station on military orders through six months after return to the home station.
6. "Educational records" means official records, files, and data directly related to a student and maintained by the student's school or school district, including records encompassing all the material kept in the student's cumulative folder such as general identifying data, records of attendance and of academic work completed, records of achievement and results of evaluative tests, health data, disciplinary status, test protocols, and individualized education programs.
7. "Extracurricular activities" means a voluntary activity sponsored by the school or school district or an organization sanctioned by the school district, including preparation for involvement in public performances, contests, athletic competitions, demonstrations, displays, and club activities.
8. "Member state" means a state that has enacted this compact.
9. "Military installation" means a base, camp, post, station, yard, center, homeport facility for any ship, or other facility under the jurisdiction of the department of defense, including any leased facility that is located within a state. The term does not include any facility used primarily for civil works, rivers and harbors projects, or flood control projects.
10. "Nonmember state" means a state that has not enacted this compact.
11. "Receiving state" means the state to which a child of a military family is sent, brought, or caused to be sent or brought.
12. "Rule" means a written statement by the commission promulgated pursuant to article XII of this compact which:
 - a. Is of general applicability;
 - b. Implements, interprets, or prescribes a policy or provision of the compact;
 - c. Is an organizational, procedural, or practice requirement of the commission;
 - d. Has the force and effect of law in a member state; and
 - e. Includes the amendment, repeal, or suspension of an existing rule.
13. "Sending state" means the state from which a child of a military family is sent, brought, or caused to be sent or brought.
14. "State" means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Northern Marianas Islands, and any other United States territory.

15. "Student" means the child of a military family who is formally enrolled in kindergarten through grade twelve and for whom a school district receives public funding.
16. "Transition" means:
 - a. The formal and physical process of transferring from one school to another; or
 - b. The period of time during which a student moves from one school in the sending state to another school in the receiving state.
17. "Uniformed services" means the army, navy, air force, marine corps, and coast guard, and the commissioned corps of the national oceanic and atmospheric administration and public health services.
18. "Veteran" means an individual who served in the uniformed services and who was discharged or released therefrom under conditions other than dishonorable.

ARTICLE III. APPLICABILITY

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, this compact applies to the children of:
 - a. Active duty members of the uniformed services as defined in this compact, including members of the national guard and reserve on active duty orders pursuant to 10 U.S.C. 1209 and 1211;
 - b. Members or veterans of the uniformed services who are severely injured and medically discharged or retired for a period of one year after medical discharge or retirement; and
 - c. Members of the uniformed services who die on active duty or as a result of injuries sustained on active duty, for a period of one year after the member's death.
2. This compact only applies to school districts as defined in this compact.
3. This compact does not apply to the children of:
 - a. Inactive members of the national guard and military reserves;
 - b. Members of the uniformed services now retired, except as provided in subsection 1;
 - c. Veterans of the uniformed services, except as provided in subsection 1; and
 - d. Other United States department of defense personnel and other federal agency civilian and contract employees not defined as active duty members of the uniformed services.

ARTICLE IV. EDUCATIONAL RECORDS AND ENROLLMENT

1. If official educational records cannot be released to the parents for the purpose of transfer, the custodian of the records in the sending state shall prepare and furnish to the parent a complete set of unofficial educational records containing uniform information as determined by the commission. Upon receipt of the unofficial educational records by a school in the receiving state, the school shall enroll and appropriately place the student based on the information provided in the unofficial records pending validation by the official records, as quickly as possible.

2. Simultaneous with the enrollment and conditional placement of the student, the school in the receiving state shall request the student's official educational records from the school in the sending state. Upon receipt of this request, the school in the sending state shall process and furnish the official educational records to the school in the receiving state within ten days or within the time determined to be reasonable under the rules promulgated by the commission.
3. Compacting states shall give thirty days from the date of enrollment, or the time determined to be reasonable under the rules promulgated by the commission, for students to obtain any immunization required by the receiving state. For a series of immunizations, initial vaccinations must be obtained within thirty days or within the time determined to be reasonable under the rules promulgated by the commission.
4. Students must be allowed to continue their enrollment at grade level in the receiving state commensurate with their grade level in the sending state at the time of transition, regardless of age. A student who satisfactorily has completed the prerequisite grade level in the sending state is eligible for enrollment in the next highest grade level in the receiving state, regardless of age. A student transferring after the start of the school calendar in the receiving state shall enter the school in the receiving state on the validated level from the school in the sending state.

ARTICLE V. PLACEMENT AND ATTENDANCE

1. When a student transfers before or during the regular school calendar, the receiving state school shall initially honor placement of the student in educational courses based on the student's enrollment in the sending school or educational assessments conducted at the school in the sending state, if the courses are offered. Course placement includes honors, international baccalaureate, advanced placement, and career and technical education courses. Continuing the student's academic program from the sending school and promoting placement in challenging courses should be paramount when considering placement. This does not preclude the school in the receiving state from performing subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement and continued enrollment of the student in the course.
2.
 - a. The receiving school initially shall honor placement of the student in educational programs based on current educational assessments conducted at the sending school or based on placement in like programs in the sending school. Such programs include gifted and talented programs and English language learner programs. This does not preclude the receiving school from performing subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement of the student.
 - b. This subsection does not require a school district to create programs or offer services that were not in place before the enrollment of the student unless the programs or services are required by federal law.
3.
 - a. In compliance with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Act [20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.], the receiving school initially shall provide comparable services to a student with disabilities based on the student's current individualized education program; and
 - b. In compliance with the requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act [29 U.S.C. 794] and with the Americans with Disabilities Act [42 U.S.C. 12131 et seq.], the receiving school shall make reasonable accommodations and modifications to address the needs of incoming students with disabilities, subject to an existing 504 or title II plan, to provide the student with equal access to education. This does not preclude the receiving school from performing subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement of the student.

4. School district administrators have flexibility in waiving course or program prerequisites and other preconditions for placement in courses or programs offered by the district.
5. A student whose parent or legal guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or a combat support posting must be granted additional excused absences by the school district superintendent to visit with the student's parent or legal guardian relative to the leave or deployment of the parent or guardian.

ARTICLE VI. ELIGIBILITY

1. Eligibility for enrollment:
 - a. A special power of attorney, relative to the guardianship of a child of a military family and executed under applicable law is sufficient for the purposes of enrollment and all other actions requiring parental participation and consent.
 - b. A school district may not charge tuition to a transitioning military child placed in the care of a noncustodial parent or other individual standing in loco parentis who lives in a school district other than that of the custodial parent.
 - c. A transitioning military child, placed in the care of a noncustodial parent or other person standing in loco parentis who lives in a school district other than that of the custodial parent, may continue to attend the school in which the child was enrolled while residing with the custodial parent.
2. The superintendent of public instruction, school districts, and the North Dakota high school activities association shall facilitate the opportunity for transitioning military children's inclusion in extracurricular activities, regardless of application deadlines, to the extent they are otherwise qualified.

ARTICLE VII. GRADUATION

To facilitate the on-time graduation of children of military families, the superintendent of public instruction and school district administrators shall incorporate the following procedures:

1. School district administrators shall waive specific courses required for graduation if similar coursework has been satisfactorily completed in another school district or shall provide reasonable justification for denial. Should a waiver not be granted to a student who would qualify to graduate from the sending school, the receiving school district shall provide an alternative means of acquiring required coursework so that graduation may occur on time.
2. States must accept exit or end-of-course examinations required for graduation from the sending state, national norm-referenced achievement tests, or alternative testing in lieu of testing requirements for graduation in the receiving state. If these alternatives cannot be accommodated by the receiving state for a student transferring in the student's senior year, then subsection 3 applies.
3. Should a military student transferring at the beginning or during the student's senior year be ineligible to graduate from the receiving school district after all alternatives have been considered, the sending and receiving school districts shall ensure the receipt of a diploma from the sending school district if the student meets the graduation requirements of the sending school district. If one of the states in question is not a member of this compact, the member state shall use best efforts to

facilitate the on-time graduation of the student in accordance with subsections 1 and 2.

ARTICLE VIII. STATE COORDINATION

1. Each member state, through the creation of a state council or use of an existing entity, shall provide for the coordination among its state agencies, school districts, and military installations concerning the state's participation in, and compliance with, this compact and commission activities. While each member state may determine the membership of its own state council, its membership must include at least the superintendent of public instruction, a gubernatorial appointee who is the superintendent of a school district with a high concentration of military children, a representative from a military installation, one member of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the legislative management, a gubernatorial appointee who represents the executive branch of government, and any other individuals or group representatives that the state council determines appropriate. A member state that does not have a school district determined to contain a high concentration of military children may appoint a superintendent from another school district to represent school districts on the state council.
2. The state council of each member state shall appoint or designate a military family education liaison to assist military families and the state in facilitating the implementation of this compact; provided, however, in North Dakota, the appointment shall be made by the adjutant general of the national guard.
3. The compact commissioner responsible for the administration and management of the state's participation in the compact must be appointed by the governor or as otherwise determined by each member state.
4. The compact commissioner and the military family education liaison are ex officio members of the state council, unless either is already a full voting member of the state council.

ARTICLE IX. INTERSTATE COMMISSION ON

EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY FOR MILITARY CHILDREN

1. The interstate commission on educational opportunity for military children is created.
2. The activities of the commission are the formation of public policy and are a discretionary state function.
3. The commission is a body corporate and joint agency of the member states and has all the responsibilities, powers, and duties set forth herein, and any additional powers as may be conferred upon it by a subsequent concurrent action of the respective legislatures of member states in accordance with the terms of this compact.
4. The commission consists of one commission voting representative from each member state who must be that state's compact commissioner.
 - a. Each member state represented at a meeting of the commission is entitled to one vote.
 - b. A majority of the total member states constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business unless a larger quorum is required by the bylaws of the commission.
 - c. A representative may not delegate a vote to another member state. If the compact commissioner is unable to attend a meeting of the

- commission, the governor or state council may delegate voting authority to another person from the state for a specified meeting.
- d. The bylaws may provide for meetings of the commission to be conducted by telecommunications or electronic communication.
 5. The commission consists of ex officio, nonvoting representatives who are members of interested organizations. Ex officio members, as defined in the bylaws, may include members of the representative organizations of military family advocates, school district officials, parent and teacher groups, the department of defense, the education commission of the states, the interstate agreement on the qualification of educational personnel, and other interstate compacts affecting the education of children of military members.
 6. The commission shall meet at least once each calendar year. The chairman may call additional meetings and, upon the request of a majority of the member states, shall call additional meetings.
 7. The commission shall establish an executive committee, whose members must include the officers of the commission and any other members of the commission as determined by the bylaws. Members of the executive committee shall serve a one-year term. Members of the executive committee are entitled to one vote each. The executive committee may act on behalf of the commission, with the exception of rulemaking, during periods when the commission is not in session. The executive committee shall oversee the day-to-day activities of the administration of the compact, including enforcement and compliance with the compact, its bylaws and rules, and other such duties as determined necessary. The department of defense is an ex officio nonvoting member of the executive committee.
 8. The commission shall establish bylaws and rules that provide for conditions and procedures under which the commission shall make its information and official records available to the public for inspection or copying. The commission may exempt from disclosure information or official records to the extent they would adversely affect personal privacy rights or proprietary interests.
 9. The commission shall give public notice of all meetings and all meetings shall be open to the public, except as set forth in the rules or as otherwise provided in the compact. The commission and its committees may close a meeting, or portion thereof, when it determines by two-thirds vote that an open meeting would be likely to:
 - a. Relate solely to the commission's internal personnel practices and procedures;
 - b. Disclose matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal and state statute;
 - c. Disclose trade secrets or commercial or financial information that is privileged or confidential;
 - d. Involve accusing a person of a crime or formally censuring a person;
 - e. Disclose information of a personal nature when disclosure would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy;
 - f. Disclose investigative records compiled for law enforcement purposes; or
 - g. Specifically relate to the commission's participation in a civil action or other legal proceeding.

10. The commission shall cause its legal counsel or designee to certify that a meeting may be closed and shall reference each relevant exemptible provision for any meeting, or portion of a meeting, which is closed pursuant to this provision. The commission shall keep minutes that fully and clearly describe all matters discussed in a meeting and shall provide a full and accurate summary of actions taken, and the reasons therefore, including a description of the views expressed and the record of a roll call vote. All documents considered in connection with an action must be identified in the minutes. All minutes and documents of a closed meeting must remain under seal, subject to release by a majority vote of the commission.
11. The commission shall collect standardized data concerning the educational transition of the children of military families under this compact as directed through its rules, which shall specify the data to be collected, the means of collection, and data exchange and reporting requirements. The methods of data collection, exchange, and reporting, insofar as is reasonably possible, must conform to current technology and coordinate its information functions with the appropriate custodian of records as identified in the bylaws and rules.
12. The commission shall create a process that permits military officials, education officials, and parents to inform the commission if and when there are alleged violations of the compact or its rules or when issues subject to the jurisdiction of the compact or its rules are not addressed by the state or local education agency. This subsection does not create a private right of action against the commission, any member state, or any school district.

ARTICLE X. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION

The commission may:

1. Provide for dispute resolution among member states;
2. Adopt rules that have the force and effect of law and are binding in the compact states to the extent and in the manner provided in this compact and take all necessary actions to effect the goals, purposes, and obligations as enumerated in this compact;
3. Issue, upon request of a member state, advisory opinions concerning the meaning or interpretation of the interstate compact, its bylaws, rules, and actions;
4. Monitor compliance with the compact provisions, the rules adopted by the commission, and the bylaws;
5. Establish and maintain offices within one or more of the member states;
6. Purchase and maintain insurance and bonds;
7. Borrow, accept, hire, or contract for services of personnel;
8. Establish and appoint committees, including an executive committee as required by article IX, which may act on behalf of the commission in carrying out its powers and duties;
9. Elect or appoint officers, attorneys, employees, agents, and consultants and fix their compensation; define their duties; determine their qualifications; and establish the commission's personnel policies and programs relating to conflicts of interest, rates of compensation, and qualifications of personnel;
10. Accept, receive, use, and dispose of donations and grants of money, equipment, supplies, materials, and services;

11. Lease, purchase, accept contributions or donations of, or otherwise to own, hold, improve, or use any property, real, personal, or mixed;
12. Sell, convey, mortgage, pledge, lease, exchange, abandon, or otherwise dispose of any property;
13. Establish a budget and make expenditures;
14. Adopt a seal and bylaws governing the management and operation of the commission;
15. Report annually to the legislatures, governors, judiciary, and state councils of the member states concerning the activities of the commission during the preceding year and include any recommendations that were adopted by the commission;
16. Coordinate education, training, and public awareness regarding the compact, its implementation, and operation for officials and parents involved in such activity;
17. Establish uniform standards for the reporting, collecting, and exchanging of data;
18. Maintain corporate books and records in accordance with the bylaws;
19. Perform such functions as may be necessary or appropriate to achieve the purpose of this compact; and
20. Provide for the uniform collection and sharing of information between and among member states, schools, and military families under this compact.

ARTICLE XI. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION OF THE COMMISSION

1. The commission, by a majority of the members present and voting, within twelve months after the first commission meeting, shall adopt bylaws to govern its conduct as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes of the compact, including:
 - a. Establishing the fiscal year of the commission;
 - b. Establishing an executive committee and such other committees as may be necessary;
 - c. Providing for the establishment of committees and for governing any general or specific delegation of authority or function of the commission;
 - d. Providing reasonable procedures for calling and conducting meetings of the commission and ensuring reasonable notice of each meeting;
 - e. Establishing the titles and responsibilities of the officers and staff of the commission;
 - f. Providing a mechanism for concluding the operations of the commission and the return of surplus funds that may exist upon the termination of the compact after the payment and reserving of all its debts and obligations; and
 - g. Providing startup rules for initial administration of the compact.
2. The commission, by a majority of the members, shall elect annually from among its members a chairman, a vice chairman, and a treasurer, each of whom has the authority and duties specified in the bylaws. The chairman or, in the chairman's absence or disability, the vice chairman

- shall preside at all meetings of the commission. The officers so elected serve without compensation or remuneration from the commission; provided that, subject to the availability of budgeted funds, the officers are entitled to be reimbursed for ordinary and necessary costs and expenses incurred by them in the performance of their responsibilities as officers of the commission.
3. a. The executive committee has the authority and duties set forth in the bylaws, including:
- (1) Managing the affairs of the commission in a manner consistent with the bylaws and purposes of the commission;
 - (2) Overseeing an organizational structure and appropriate procedures for the commission to provide for the creation of rules, operating procedures, and administrative and technical support functions; and
 - (3) Planning, implementing, and coordinating communications and activities with other state, federal, and local government organizations in order to advance the goals of the commission.
- b. The executive committee, subject to the approval of the commission, may appoint or retain an executive director for such period, upon such terms and conditions, and for such compensation as the commission determines appropriate. The executive director shall serve as secretary to the commission but may not be a member of the commission. The executive director shall hire and supervise such other persons as may be authorized by the commission.
4. The commission's executive director and its employees are immune from suit and liability, either personally or in their official capacity, for a claim for damage to or loss of property or personal injury or other civil liability caused or arising out of or relating to an actual or alleged act, error, or omission that occurred, or that such person had a reasonable basis for believing occurred, within the scope of commission employment, duties, or responsibilities; provided, those individuals are not protected from suit or liability for damage, loss, injury, or liability caused by their intentional or willful and wanton misconduct.
- a. The liability of the commission's executive director and employees or commission representatives, acting within the scope of that individual's employment or duties for acts, errors, or omissions occurring within that individual's state, may not exceed the limits of liability set forth under the constitution and laws of that state for state officials, employees, and agents. The commission is considered to be an instrumentality of the states for the purposes of any such action. This subsection does not protect an individual from suit or liability for damage, loss, injury, or liability caused by the intentional or willful and wanton misconduct of the individual.
- b. The commission shall defend the executive director and its employees and, subject to the approval of the attorney general or other appropriate legal counsel of the member state represented by a commission representative, shall defend a commission representative in any civil action seeking to impose liability arising out of an actual or alleged act, error, or omission that occurred within the scope of commission employment, duties, or responsibilities, or that the defendant had a reasonable basis for believing occurred within the scope of commission employment, duties, or responsibilities, provided that the actual or alleged act, error, or omission did not result from intentional or willful and wanton misconduct on the part of the individual.

- c. To the extent not covered by the state involved, member state, or the commission, the representatives or employees of the commission must be held harmless in the amount of a settlement or judgment, including attorney's fees and costs, obtained against the individuals arising out of an actual or alleged act, error, or omission that occurred within the scope of commission employment, duties, or responsibilities, or that those individuals had a reasonable basis for believing occurred within the scope of commission employment, duties, or responsibilities, provided that the actual or alleged act, error, or omission did not result from intentional or willful and wanton misconduct on the part of those individuals.

ARTICLE XII. RULEMAKING FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMISSION

1. The commission shall adopt reasonable rules in order to effectively and efficiently achieve the purposes of this compact. If the commission exercises its rulemaking authority in a manner that is beyond the scope of the purposes of this compact, or the powers granted by this compact, then such an action by the commission is invalid and has no force or effect.
2. Rules must be made pursuant to a rulemaking process that substantially conforms to the Model State Administrative Procedure Act of the national conference of commissioners on uniform state laws, as may be appropriate to the operations of the commission.
3. Within thirty days after a rule is adopted, any person may file a petition for judicial review of the rule; provided, that the filing of the petition does not stay or otherwise prevent the rule from becoming effective unless the court finds that the petitioner has a substantial likelihood of success. The court shall give deference to the actions of the commission consistent with applicable law and shall not find the rule to be unlawful if the rule represents a reasonable exercise of the commission's authority.
4. If a majority of the legislatures of the compacting states rejects a rule by enactment of a statute or resolution in the same manner used to adopt the compact, then the rule has no further force and effect in any compacting state.

ARTICLE XIII. OVERSIGHT, ENFORCEMENT, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

1.
 - a. Each member state shall enforce this compact to effectuate the compact's purposes and intent. The provisions of this compact and the rules promulgated hereunder have standing as statutory law.
 - b. Courts shall take judicial notice of the compact and the rules in any judicial or administrative proceeding in a member state pertaining to the subject matter of this compact which may affect the powers, responsibilities, or actions of the commission.
 - c. The commission is entitled to receive all service of process in any proceeding and has standing to intervene in the proceeding for all purposes. Failure to provide service of process to the commission renders a judgment or order void as to the commission, this compact, or adopted rules.
2. If the commission determines that a member state has defaulted in the performance of its obligations or responsibilities under this compact, or the bylaws or adopted rules, the commission shall:
 - a. Provide written notice to the defaulting state and other member states of the nature of the default, the means of curing the default, and any action taken by the commission, and specify the conditions by which the defaulting state must cure its default; and

- b. Offer technical assistance to the member state.
3. If the defaulting state fails to cure the default, the defaulting state shall terminate from the compact upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the member states and all rights, privileges, and benefits conferred by this compact are terminated from the effective date of termination. A cure of the default does not relieve the offending state of obligations or liabilities incurred during the period of the default, except that in the event of a default by this state, its total financial responsibility is limited to the amount of its most recent annual assessment.
4. Suspension or termination of membership in the compact may be imposed only after all other means of securing compliance have been exhausted. Notice of intent to suspend or terminate must be given by the commission to the governor, the majority and minority leaders of the defaulting state's legislature, and each member state.
5. The state that has been suspended or terminated is responsible for all assessments, obligations, and liabilities incurred through the effective date of suspension or termination, to a maximum of five thousand dollars multiplied by the number of years that the state has been a member of the compact. In the event that this state is suspended or terminated, its total financial responsibility is limited to the amount of its most recent annual assessment.
6. The commission may not bear any costs relating to any state that has been found to be in default or which has been suspended or terminated from the compact, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing between the commission and the defaulting state.
7. The defaulting state may appeal the action of the commission by petitioning the United States district court for the District of Columbia or the federal district where the commission has its principal offices. The prevailing party must be awarded all costs of such litigation, including reasonable attorney's fees.
8. The commission shall attempt, upon the request of a member state, to resolve disputes that are subject to the compact and which may arise among member states and between member and nonmember states. The commission shall adopt a rule providing for mediation and binding dispute resolution for disputes as appropriate.

ARTICLE XIV. FINANCING OF THE COMMISSION

1. The commission shall pay, or provide for the payment of, the reasonable expenses of its establishment, organization, and ongoing activities.
2.
 - a. The commission may levy on and collect an annual assessment from each member state to cover the cost of the operations and activities of the commission and its staff which must be in a total amount sufficient to cover the commission's annual budget as approved each year.
 - b. The aggregate annual assessment amount must be allocated based upon a formula to be determined by the commission, which shall adopt a rule binding upon all member states.
 - c. The annual assessment applicable to this state may not exceed an amount equal to two dollars multiplied by the latest available number of children of military families in this state.
 - d. This state may not be held liable for the payment of any special assessment or any assessment other than the annual assessment in the amount established by this subsection.

3. The commission may not incur obligations of any kind prior to securing the funds adequate to meet the same; nor may the commission pledge the credit of any of the member states, except by and with the authority of the member state.
4. The commission shall keep accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements. The receipts and disbursements of the commission are subject to the audit and accounting procedures established under its bylaws. However, all receipts and disbursements of funds handled by the commission must be audited yearly by a certified or licensed public accountant and the report of the audit must be included in and become part of the annual report of the commission.

ARTICLE XV. MEMBER STATES, EFFECTIVE DATE, AND AMENDMENT

1. Any state is eligible to become a member state.
2. The compact becomes effective and binding upon legislative enactment of the compact into law by no less than ten states. The effective date may not be earlier than December 1, 2007. Thereafter, the compact becomes effective and binding as to any other member state upon enactment of the compact into law by that state. The governors of nonmember states or their designees must be invited to participate in the activities of the commission on a nonvoting basis prior to adoption of the compact by all states.
3. The commission may propose amendments to the compact for enactment by the member states. No amendment may become effective and binding upon the commission and the member states until the amendment is enacted into law by unanimous consent of the member states.

ARTICLE XVI. WITHDRAWAL AND DISSOLUTION

1.
 - a. Once effective, the compact continues in force and remains binding upon each member state, provided that a member state may withdraw from the compact by specifically repealing the statute that enacted the compact into law, except that in the case of this state, withdrawal from the compact may also be accomplished by statutorily allowing for the expiration of this Act.
 - b. Withdrawal from this compact must be by the enactment of a statute repealing the compact, except that in the case of this state, withdrawal from the compact may also be accomplished by statutorily allowing for the expiration of this Act.
 - c. The withdrawing state immediately shall notify the chairman of the commission in writing upon the introduction of legislation repealing this compact in the withdrawing state, except that if this state elects to withdraw from the compact by statutorily allowing for the expiration of this Act, this state shall notify the chairman of the commission when it becomes evident that the expiration will take effect. The commission shall notify the other member states of the withdrawing state's intent to withdraw within sixty days of receiving the notice.
 - d. The withdrawing state is responsible for all assessments, obligations, and liabilities incurred through the effective date of withdrawal, to a maximum amount equal to two dollars multiplied by the latest available number of children of military families in this state.
 - e. Reinstatement following withdrawal of a member state occurs upon the withdrawing state reenacting the compact or upon such later date as determined by the commission.

2. This compact dissolves effective upon the date of the withdrawal or default of the member state which reduces the membership in the compact to one member state. Upon the dissolution of this compact, the compact becomes null and void and is of no further force or effect, and the business and affairs of the commission must be concluded and surplus funds must be distributed in accordance with the bylaws.

ARTICLE XVII. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

1. The provisions of this compact are severable and if any phrase, clause, sentence, or provision is determined unenforceable, the remaining provisions of the compact are enforceable.
2. This compact must be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes.
3. Nothing in this compact prohibits the applicability of other interstate compacts to which the states are members.

ARTICLE XVIII. BINDING EFFECT OF COMPACT AND OTHER LAWS

1. Nothing in this compact prevents the enforcement of any other law of a member state that is not inconsistent with this compact. All member states' laws conflicting with this compact are superseded to the extent of the conflict.
2.
 - a. All lawful actions of the commission, including all rules and bylaws promulgated by the commission, are binding upon the member states.
 - b. All agreements between the commission and the member states are binding in accordance with their terms.
 - c. If any provision of this compact exceeds the constitutional limits imposed on the legislature of any member state, the provision is ineffective to the extent of the conflict with the constitutional provision in question in that member state.

15.1-04.1-02. Compact on educational opportunity for military children - State council - Appointment.

The state council on educational opportunity for military children consists of:

1. The following voting members:
 - a. The superintendent of public instruction, who shall serve as the chairman;
 - b. The superintendent of a school district that includes a high concentration of military children, appointed by the governor;
 - c. A representative of a military installation, appointed by the governor;
 - d. One legislator, appointed by the chairman of the legislative management;
 - e. One representative of the executive branch of government, appointed by the governor; and
 - f. Any other individuals recommended by the members of the state council listed in subdivisions a through e; and
2. The following nonvoting members:
 - a. The compact commissioner appointed under section 15.1-04.1-03; and

- b. The military family education liaison, appointed under section 15.1-04.1-04.

15.1-04.1-03. Compact commissioner - Appointment - Duties.

The governor shall appoint a compact commissioner who shall be responsible for the administration and management of the state's participation in the compact on educational opportunity for military children.

15.1-04.1-04. Military family education liaison - Appointment - Duties.

The state council on educational opportunity for military children shall appoint a military family education liaison to assist military families and the state in facilitating the implementation of the compact on educational opportunity for military children.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-06-01. Schools free and accessible - School ages.

1. Each public school must be free, open, and accessible at all times to any child provided:
 - a. The child may not enroll in grade one unless the child reaches the age of six before August first of the year of enrollment;
 - b. The child may not enroll in kindergarten unless the child reaches the age of five before August first of the year of enrollment; and
 - c. The child has not reached the age of twenty-one before August first of the year of enrollment.
2. Notwithstanding subsection 1, a school district may not enroll in grade one a child who is not six years old before August first, unless the child will be six years old before December first and:
 - a. The child, by means of developmental and readiness screening instruments approved by the superintendent of public instruction and administered by the school district, can demonstrate academic, social, and emotional readiness; or
 - b. The child has completed an approved kindergarten program.
3. Notwithstanding subsection 1, a school district may not enroll in kindergarten a child who is not five years old before August first unless the child will be five years old before December first and the child, by means of developmental and readiness screening instruments approved by the superintendent of public instruction and administered by the school district, can demonstrate academic, social, and emotional readiness.
4. The requirements of this section are not applicable to the children of military families, to the extent that the requirements conflict with enrollment provisions otherwise agreed to by the state in the compact on educational opportunity for military children.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.1. High school graduation - Diploma requirements.

Except as provided in section 15.1-21-02.3 or as otherwise agreed to in the compact on educational opportunity for military children, before a school district, a nonpublic high school, or the center for distance education issues a high school

diploma to a student, the student must have successfully completed the following twenty-two units of high school coursework:

1. Four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
2. Three units of mathematics;
3. Three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
4. Three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
5.
 - a. One unit of physical education; or
 - b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
6. Three units of:
 - a. Foreign languages;
 - b. Native American languages;
 - c. Fine arts; or
 - d. Career and technical education courses; and
7. Any five additional units.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 15.1-29-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1.
 - a. Except as provided in this subsection or as otherwise agreed to in the compact on educational opportunity for military children, the board of a school district that admits a nonresident student shall charge and collect tuition for the student. Either the student's district of residence shall pay the tuition to the admitting district in accordance with section 15.1-29-12 or the student's parent shall pay the tuition to the admitting district in accordance with section 15.1-29-07.
 - b. A board may charge tuition for nonresident students enrolled in an approved alternative education program.

- c. Except as otherwise provided, if a school district fails to charge and collect tuition for a nonresident student, the districts shall forfeit any state aid otherwise payable for the nonresident student.

SECTION 5.

Adjutant general - Provision of funding - Source.

The adjutant general shall pay all expenses incurred by the state to participate in the compact on educational opportunity for military children, including the reimbursement of actual and necessary expenses incurred by members of the state council, from the operating expenses line item in the appropriation bill for the adjutant general, as approved by the legislative assembly.

SECTION 6. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. Before July 1, 2012, representatives of the Grand Forks school district, the Minot school district, the Grand Forks air force base school district, and the Minot air force base school district shall provide, singly or jointly, a report to the legislative management regarding the state's participation in the compact on educational opportunity for military children.

SECTION 7. EXPIRATION DATE. This Act is effective through July 31, 2013, and after that date is ineffective."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1248 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. SCHAIBLE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1248 as printed on SJ pages 1660-1677 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1248, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1248: A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 15.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to entry into the compact on educational opportunity for military children; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-06-01 and 15.1-21-02.1 and subsection 1 of section 15.1-29-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the age of school admission, the issuance of high school diplomas, and the charging of tuition; to provide for a report; to provide a funding source; and to provide an expiration date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 45 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kitzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

NAYS: Triplett

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Marcellais

Engrossed HB 1248, as amended, passed.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)
MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has appointed Rep. Williams to replace Rep. Dosch on the Conference Committee on SB 2057.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1248.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1044.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2042, SB 2129.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2056.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1014, HB 1025, HB 1047, HB 1194.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: HB 1093, HB 1094, HB 1095, HB 1099, HB 1103, HB 1112, HB 1124, HB 1127, HB 1133, HB 1138, HB 1142, HB 1144, HB 1152, HB 1154, HB 1155, HB 1174, HB 1194, HB 1199, HB 1252, HB 1266, HB 1269, HB 1424.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate stand in recess until 5:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE SENATE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with President Wrigley presiding.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2276, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Uglen, Mathern and Reps. Weisz, Devlin, Holman) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1022-1024, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2276 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1022-1024 of the Senate Journal and pages 1135-1137 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2276 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota immunization program; to amend and reenact section 23-01-05.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reporting immunization data; to provide for a legislative management study; and to provide an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 23-01-05.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

23-01-05.3. Immunization data.

1. The state department of health may establish an immunization information system and may require the childhood immunizations specified in subsection 1 of section 23-07-17.1 and other information be reported to the department. The state department of health may only require the reporting of childhood immunizations and other data upon completion of the immunization information reporting system. A health care provider who administers a childhood immunization shall report the patient's identifying information, the immunization that is administered, and other required information to the department. The report must be submitted using electronic media, and must contain the data content and use the format and codes specified by the department.

2. If a health care provider fails to submit an immunization report required under this section within four weeks of vaccination:
 - a. That health care provider may not order or receive any vaccine from the North Dakota immunization program until that provider submits all reports required under this section.
 - b. The state department of health shall make a report to that health care provider's occupational licensing entity outlining that provider's failure to comply with the reporting requirements under this section.
3. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a health care provider, elementary or secondary school, early childhood facility, public or private postsecondary educational institution, city or county board of health, district health unit, and the state health officer may exchange immunization data in any manner with one another. Immunization data that may be exchanged under this section is limited to the date and type of immunization administered to a patient and may be exchanged regardless of the date of the immunization.

SECTION 2. A new chapter to title 23 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Definitions.

As used in this chapter:

1. "Department" means the state department of health.
2. "Health insurance coverage" means any hospital and medical expense-incurred policy, nonprofit health care service plan contract, health maintenance organization subscriber contract, or any other health care plan or arrangement that pays for or furnishes benefits that pay the costs of or provide medical, surgical, or hospital care or, if selected by the eligible individual, chiropractic care.
 - a. Health insurance coverage does not include any one or more of the following:
 - (1) Coverage only for accident or disability income insurance, or any combination of the two;
 - (2) Coverage issued as a supplement to liability insurance;
 - (3) Liability insurance, including general liability insurance and automobile liability insurance;
 - (4) Workers' compensation coverage or insurance;
 - (5) Automobile medical payment insurance;
 - (6) Credit-only insurance;
 - (7) Coverage for onsite medical clinics; and
 - (8) Other similar insurance coverage, specified in federal regulations, under which benefits for medical care are secondary or incidental to other insurance benefits.
 - b. Health insurance coverage does not include the following benefits if the benefits are provided under a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance or are otherwise not an integral part of the plan:
 - (1) Limited scope dental or vision benefits;

- (2) Benefits for long-term care, nursing home care, home health care, community-based care, or any combination of this care; and
 - (3) Other similar limited benefits specified under federal regulations issued under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 [Pub. L. 104-191; 110 Stat. 1936; 29 U.S.C. 1181 et seq.].
- c. Health insurance coverage does not include any of the following benefits if the benefits are provided under a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance; there is no coordination between the provision of the benefits; any exclusion of benefits under any group health insurance coverage maintained by the same plan sponsor; and the benefits are paid with respect to an event without regard to whether benefits are provided with respect to such an event under any group health plan maintained by the same sponsor:
- (1) Coverage only for specified disease or illness; and
 - (2) Hospital indemnity or other fixed indemnity insurance.
- d. Health insurance coverage does not include the following if offered as a separate policy, certificate, or contract of insurance:
- (1) Coverage supplemental to the coverage provided under chapter 55 of United States Code title 10 [10 U.S.C. 1071 et seq.] relating to armed forces medical and dental care; and
 - (2) Similar supplemental coverage provided under a group health plan.
3. "Insurer" means any insurance company, nonprofit health service organization, fraternal benefit society, and health maintenance organization and any other entity providing or selling health insurance coverage or health benefits that are subject to state insurance regulation.
4. "North Dakota immunization program" means the program administered by the department to provide vaccinations to North Dakota children consistent with state and federal law.
5. "Program-eligible child" means any child who is under nineteen years of age, whose custodial parent or legal guardian resides in this state, who receives vaccinations from a North Dakota provider, and who is not eligible for the vaccines for children program.
6. "Third-party administrator" means a person that administers payments for health care services on behalf of a client health plan in exchange for an administrative fee.
7. "Vaccine" means any vaccine recommended by the federal advisory committee on immunization practices of the centers for disease control and prevention.
8. "Vaccines for children program" is a federally funded program that provides vaccines at no cost to eligible children pursuant to section 1928 of the Social Security Act [42 U.S.C. 1396S].

Immunization program - Provider choice.

As part of the North Dakota immunization program the department shall implement a provider choice system as part of the state's implementation of the vaccines for children program. This provider choice system must provide a health care provider participating in the state's vaccines for children program or in any other immunization program for children, adolescents, or adults which is administered

through the state using federal or state funds may select any licensed vaccine, including combination vaccines, and any dosage forms that have in effect a recommendation from the federal advisory committee on immunization practices. This section does not apply in the event of a disaster, public health emergency, terrorist attack, hostile military or paramilitary action, or extraordinary law enforcement emergency.

Immunization program - Vaccine ordering program - Funding - Limitations.

1. As part of the North Dakota immunization program the department shall establish a program through which the department orders vaccines through the federal government.
 - a. The department shall supply all providers with the ordered vaccines. A provider that receives vaccines under this vaccine ordering program shall administer the vaccines to program-eligible children.
 - b. A provider that receives vaccines under this vaccine ordering program may not bill an insurer for the cost of the vaccine but may charge an administration fee.
2. The department shall fund this vaccine ordering program first through participation in the vaccines for children program and the federal section 317 immunization grant program and then through assessments collected from insurers and third-party administrators. The department shall identify methodology and procedures for determining assessments that are fair and equitable for insurers and third-party administrators, including a third-party administrator for a self-insurance plan. The department may assess a subgroup of insurers and third-party administrators based on immunization volume or other factors as approved by the department. The department shall provide for any additional matters necessary for the implementation and administration of the fund.
3. In addition to the vaccines supplied to providers under the vaccines for children program and the federal section 317 immunization grant program under the federal vaccine purchasing contract, no more than ten percent of the remaining vaccines the department supplies under this section may be purchased under the federal vaccine purchasing contract.

Vaccine ordering program - Assessment.

1. An insurer or third-party administrator shall pay the insurer's or third-party administrator's annual assessment on the dates specified by the department. The department shall establish payment dates that are at least quarterly but which may be more frequent.
2. Within sixty days of the department sending the notice of assessment to the insurer or third-party administrator, that insurer or third-party administrator shall pay the department the assessment.
3. For late or nonpayment of an assessment by an insurer or third-party administrator, the department shall impose interest at the rate of one percent of the unpaid assessment due for each month or fraction of a month during which the assessment remains unpaid, computed from the due date of the assessment to the date paid, excepting the month in which the assessment was required to be paid or the assessment became due. If an insurer's or third-party administrator's assessment remains partly or fully unpaid for more than ninety days from the due date, the department may impose a penalty not to exceed two times the amount of the unpaid assessment. In addition, the department may refer the insurer or third-party administrator to the insurance commissioner who may use any sanctions available to penalize for nonpayment of the assessment.

4. For good cause, an insurer or third-party administrator may request that the department grant a deferment from all or part of an assessment. The department may defer all or part of the assessment if the department determines the payment of the assessment would place the insurer or third-party administrator in a financially impaired condition, as provided under title 26.1. If all or part of an assessment against an insurer or third-party administrator is deferred, the amount deferred may be assessed against the other insurers and third-party administrators in a manner consistent with the basis for assessment provided under this section. The insurer or third-party administrator receiving the deferment remains liable to the North Dakota vaccine fund for the amount deferred and may be referred to the insurance commissioner who may use any sanctions available.
5. The department shall use all funds received through these assessments for the purposes expressly authorized by this chapter. The department may not use these assessment funds for any purpose that is not expressly authorized under this chapter.

North Dakota vaccine fund.

There is created in the state treasury the North Dakota vaccine fund. Moneys in the North Dakota vaccine fund must be appropriated by the legislative assembly solely for purposes established by this chapter. All interest and earnings of the North Dakota vaccine fund must be retained in the fund. Any entity subject to this assessment is not entitled to a credit for this assessment against tax due under section 26.1-03-17. Administrative costs associated with establishing and operating the North Dakota vaccine fund must be paid out of the fund.

SECTION 3. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT IMMUNIZATION STUDY.

During the 2011-12 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the North Dakota immunization program. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-third legislative assembly.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act become effective October 1, 2011."

ReNUMBER accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2276 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. J. LEE MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed SB 2276 as printed on SJ pages 1678-1682 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed SB 2276, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2276: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota immunization program; to amend and reenact section 23-01-05.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reporting immunization data; to provide for a legislative management study; and to provide an effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 45 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

NAYS: Sitte

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Marcellais

Reengrossed SB 2276 passed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1044, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Uglem, Bowman and Reps. Weisz, Porter, Holman) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1509-1510, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1044 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1509 and 1510 of the House Journal and pages 855 and 856 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1044 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the second comma insert "an emergency medical services advisory council,"

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services operations service areas;"

Page 1, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The state department of health shall license emergency medical services operations. ~~After June 30, 2001, the and may designate their service areas. The department shall limit the issuance of a license for any new emergency medical services operation based on the needs of the service area if the applicant for the new license was licensed before July 1, 2001, and was subsequently relicensed under section 23-27-04.5. A license for an emergency medical services operation is nontransferable.~~

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

"Emergency medical services advisory council.

The state department of health shall establish an emergency medical services advisory council. The council must include at least three representatives appointed by an emergency medical services organization, one individual to represent basic life support and one individual to represent advanced life support, both appointed by the state health officer, and other members designated by the state health officer, not to exceed a total of fourteen members. The department shall consider the recommendations of the council on the plan for integrated emergency medical services in the state, development of emergency medical services funding areas, development of the emergency medical services funding areas application process and budget criteria, and other issues relating to emergency medical services as determined by the state health officer. Council members are entitled to reimbursement for expenses in the manner provided in section 44-08-04. The department shall establish by policy the length of terms and the method for rotation of membership.

Page 2, line 18, replace "one-half" with "one million two hundred fifty thousand dollars"

Page 2, line 21, replace "\$2,000,000" with "\$3,000,000"

Page 2, line 22, replace "4" with "5"

- Page 2, line 22, after "the" insert "\$1,250,000"
- Page 2, line 26, replace "\$2,000,000" with "\$3,000,000"
- Page 2, line 29, remove "The department may spend"
- Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31
- Page 3, line 1, replace "2" with "3"
- Page 3, line 1, replace "January 1" with "June 30"
- ReNUMBER accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1044 - State Department of Health - Conference Committee Action

	Executive Budget	House Version	Conference Committee Changes	Conference Committee Version	Senate Version	Comparison to Senate
Emergency medical services grants		\$2,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$4,000,000	(\$1,000,000)
Total all funds	\$0	\$2,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$4,000,000	(\$1,000,000)
Less estimated income	0	0	0	0	0	0
General fund	\$0	\$2,000,000	\$1,000,000	\$3,000,000	\$4,000,000	(\$1,000,000)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Department No. 301 - State Department of Health - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	Adds Funding for EMS Grants ¹	Total Conference Committee Changes
Emergency medical services grants	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000
Total all funds	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000
Less estimated income	0	0
General fund	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000
FTE	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee increased funding for emergency medical services assistance grants from \$2,000,000 provided by the House to \$3,000,000. The Senate provided \$4,000,000.

The conference committee included changes made by the Senate to create an emergency medical services advisory council, provide that the State Department of Health designate emergency medical services service areas, and limit the state financial assistance for emergency medical services in the first year of the biennium to \$1.25 million. In addition, the conference committee provided that three representatives of the emergency medical services advisory council be appointed by an emergency medical services organization, this is changed from the North Dakota EMS Association.

Reengrossed HB 1044 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

SEN. UGLEM MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1044 as printed on SJ pages 1683-1684 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed HB 1044, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1044: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to ambulance operations areas, an emergency medical services advisory council, emergency medical services funding areas, and state financial assistance for emergency medical services; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 23-27-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services operations service areas; to repeal chapter 23-40 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to emergency medical services allocations; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide an appropriation; and to provide an effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 46 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Andrist; Berry; Bowman; Burckhard; Christmann; Cook; Dever; Dotzenrod; Erbele; Fischer; Flakoll; Freborg; Grindberg; Heckaman; Hogue; Holmberg; Kilzer; Klein; Krebsbach; Laffen; Larsen; Lee, G.; Lee, J.; Luick; Lyson; Mathern; Miller; Murphy; Nelson; Nething; Nodland; O'Connell; Oehlke; Olafson; Robinson; Schaible; Schneider; Sitte; Sorvaag; Stenehjem; Taylor; Triplett; Uglem; Wanzek; Wardner; Warner

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Marcellais

Reengrossed HB 1044, as amended, passed.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2276.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1044.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1011, HB 1134.

COMMUNICATION FROM GOVERNOR JACK DALRYMPLE

This is to inform you that on April 22, 2011, I have signed the following: SB 2281.

COMMUNICATION FROM GOVERNOR JACK DALRYMPLE

This is to inform you that on April 25, 2011, I have signed the following: SB 2025, SB 2026, SB 2027, SB 2032, SB 2034, SB 2035, SB 2037, SB 2039, SB 2040, SB 2041, SB 2044, SB 2048, SB 2053, SB 2070, SB 2074, SB 2075, SB 2077, SB 2078, SB 2079, SB 2080, SB 2081, SB 2082, SB 2083, SB 2084, SB 2087, SB 2090, SB 2095, SB 2097, SB 2101, SB 2102, SB 2103, SB 2109, SB 2111, SB 2123, SB 2127, SB 2128, SB 2134, SB 2139, SB 2141, SB 2143, SB 2149, SB 2151, SB 2156, SB 2160, SB 2165, SB 2175, SB 2179, SB 2181, SB 2199, SB 2205, SB 2211, SB 2283, SB 2289, SB 2330, and SB 2341.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the absent member be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

SEN. CHRISTMANN MOVED that the Senate be on the Fourth, Fifth, Seventh, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the Senate stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 26, 2011, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2150, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Freborg, Flakoll, Heckaman and Reps. R. Kelsch, Monson, Mock) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1408-1442, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2150 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1408-1442 of the Senate Journal and pages 1229-1268 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2150 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-09, a new section to chapter 15.1-09.1, four new sections to chapter 15.1-18.2, two new sections to chapter 15.1-21, and a new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to required transfers, regional education associations, the professional development advisory committee, North Dakota scholarships, and state aid; to amend and reenact sections 15.1-07-33, 15.1-09.1-02, 15.1-21-02.1, 15.1-21-02.4, 15.1-21-02.5, 15.1-21-02.6, 15.1-21-08, 15.1-21-18, 15.1-21-19, 15.1-22-01, 15.1-22-02, 15.1-27-03, 15.1-27-03.1, 15.1-27-04, 15.1-27-07.2, 15.1-27-11, 15.1-27-23, 15.1-27-35.3, 15.1-36-02, and 15.1-37-01, subsection 1 of section 15.1-37-02, and section 15.1-37-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to technology, regional education associations, curriculum requirements, assessments, scholarships, kindergartens, student consultations, state aid, school construction funding, and early childhood education, care, and services; to repeal section 5 of this Act and sections 15.1-18.2-01, 15.1-18.2-02, 15.1-18.2-03, and 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to professional development and isolated schools; to provide an appropriation; to provide for compensation increases, transition payments, and the distribution of transportation grants, alternative middle school grants, and rapid enrollment growth grants; to provide for legislative management studies and reports; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Required transfer - Special education contract costs.

If the industrial commission is notified by the superintendent of public instruction that, using all available sources, there are insufficient moneys with which to fully reimburse school districts for the excess costs of serving the one percent of special education students statewide who require the greatest school district expenditures in order to be provided with special education and related services, the industrial commission shall transfer from the earnings and accumulated and undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota the amount that the superintendent of public instruction certifies is necessary to provide the statutorily required level of reimbursement. The superintendent of public instruction shall file for introduction legislation requesting that the ensuing legislative assembly return any amount transferred under this section to the Bank of North Dakota.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-07-33 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-07-33. Student information system - Statewide coordination - Financial support - Exemption.

1. Notwithstanding any other technology requirements imposed by the superintendent of public instruction, the information technology department, or the North Dakota educational technology council, each school district shall acquire PowerSchool through the information technology department and use it as its principal student information system.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall forward that portion of a school district's state aid which is payable by the superintendent under subdivision n of subsection 1 of section 15.1-27-03.1 directly to the information technology department to reimburse the department for the cost of the school district's acquisition, implementation, or utilization of PowerSchool and any related technology support services. The superintendent shall forward the amount payable under this subsection at

the same time and in the same manner as provided for other state aid payments under section 15.1-27-01.

3. If the portion of a school district's state aid forwarded to the information technology department under subsection 2 exceeds the cost incurred by the information technology department in providing for the school district's acquisition, implementation, or utilization of PowerSchool and any related technology support services, the information technology department shall return the excess moneys to the superintendent of public instruction for redistribution to the school district as per student payments.
4. The superintendent of public instruction may exempt a school district from having to acquire and utilize PowerSchool if the school district demonstrates that, in accordance with requirements of the bureau of Indian education, the district has acquired and is utilizing a student information system that is determined to be comparable by the superintendent.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-09.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-09.1-02. Regional education association -- Joint powers agreement associations - Review by superintendent of public instruction - Criteria.

~~Before~~In order for a group of school districts ~~may~~to be designated as a regional education association, the superintendent of public instruction shall review the joint powers agreement that the districts have entered and verify that: the requirements of this section have been met.

1. The school districts must:
 - a. Have a combined total land mass of at least five thousand eight hundred square miles [1502193 hectares];
 - b. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least four thousand five hundred square miles [1165494 hectares]; and
 - (2) Number at least twelve;
 - c. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least four thousand square miles [1035995 hectares]; and
 - (2) Have at least three thousand students in average daily membership; or
 - d. (1) Have a combined total land mass of at least one thousand five hundred square miles [388498 hectares]; and
 - (2) Have at least seven thousand five hundred students in average daily membership.
2. The school districts ~~are~~must be contiguous to each other or, if the districts are not contiguous to each other, the superintendent of public instruction shall verify that the participating districts can provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner without injuring other school districts or regional education associations and without negatively impacting the ability of other school districts or regional education associations to provide sound educational opportunities to their students in a fiscally responsible manner. A decision by the superintendent of public instruction under this subsection may be appealed to the state board of public school education. A decision by the state board is final.

3. The joint powers agreement ~~requires~~ must require that the participating school districts maintain a joint operating fund ~~and share various administrative functions and student services in accordance with subsection 4.~~
4.
 - a. ~~During the first two school years in which a regional education association is operational, each participating school district shall share in at least two administrative functions and two student services, selected by the district.~~
 - b. ~~During the third and fourth school years in which a regional education association is operational, each participating school district shall share in at least three administrative functions and three student services, selected by the district.~~
 - c. ~~During the fifth school year in which a regional education association is operational, and each year thereafter, each participating school district shall share at least five administrative functions and five student services, selected by the district.~~
 - d. ~~For purposes of this subsection:~~
 - (1) "Administrative functions" means:
 - (a) Business management;
 - (b) Career and technical education services management;
 - (c) Curriculum mapping or development;
 - (d) Data analysis;
 - (e) Federal program support;
 - (f) Federal title program management;
 - (g) Grant writing;
 - (h) School improvement;
 - (i) School safety and environment management;
 - (j) Special education services management;
 - (k) Staff development;
 - (l) Staff retention and recruitment;
 - (m) Staff sharing;
 - (n) Technology support; and
 - (o) Any other functions approved by the superintendent of public instruction.
 - (2) "Student services" means:
 - (a) Advanced placement classes;
 - (b) Alternative high schools or alternative high school programs;
 - (c) Career and technical education classes;
 - (d) Counseling services;

- (e) ~~Common elementary curricula;~~
 - (f) ~~Distance learning classes;~~
 - (g) ~~Dual credit classes;~~
 - (h) ~~Foreign language classes;~~
 - (i) ~~Library and media services;~~
 - (j) ~~Summer programs;~~
 - (k) ~~Supplemental instruction programs; and~~
 - (l) ~~Any other services approved by the superintendent of public instruction.~~
- e. ~~For purposes of this subsection, if a regional education association became operational before July 1, 2005, the 2005-06 school year must be considered the provider's first year of operation.~~
5. ~~The joint powers agreement provides~~must provide:
- a. ~~Criteria for the future participation of school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement;~~
 - b. ~~An application process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement can become participating districts; and~~
 - c. ~~A process by which school districts that were not parties to the original joint powers agreement and whose application to participate in the agreement was denied can appeal the decision to the superintendent of public instruction.~~
- 6-5. ~~The joint powers agreement provides~~must provide for the employment and compensation of staff.
- 7-6. ~~The joint powers agreement~~must:
- a. ~~Establishes~~Establish the number of members on the governing board;
 - b. ~~Establishes~~Establish the manner in which members of the governing board are determined;
 - c. ~~Requires all members~~Require that each member of the governing board ~~or their designees to be individuals~~be an individual currently serving on the board of a participating school district ~~or the designee of a participating school district's board~~; and
 - d. ~~Allows~~Allow for the inclusion of ex officio nonvoting members on the governing board.
- 8-7. ~~The joint powers agreement provides~~must provide that the board of the regional education association shall meet at least quarterly.
- 9-8. ~~The joint powers agreement does~~may not permit the regional education association to compensate members of the regional education association board for attending meetings of the board and does not permit the regional education association to reimburse members of the board for any expenses incurred in attending meetings of the board.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 15.1-09.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Regional education association - Services to be offered.

1. In order to be eligible for state funding, a regional education association must offer the following services to its member districts:
 - a. Coordination and facilitation of professional development activities for teachers and administrators employed by its member districts;
 - b. Supplementation of technology support services;
 - c. Assistance with achieving school improvement goals identified by the superintendent of public instruction;
 - d. Assistance with the collection, analysis, and interpretation of student achievement data; and
 - e. Assistance with the expansion and enrichment of curricular offerings.
2. Subsection 1 does not preclude a regional education association from offering additional services to its member districts.

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Professional development advisory committee - Reimbursement of members.

Each member of the professional development advisory committee is entitled to receive reimbursement for expenses as provided by law for state officers if the member is attending committee meetings, except that no member may receive reimbursement under this section for more than three committee meetings during each year of the biennium.

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Establishment.

The education standards and practices board shall:

1. Establish and administer a teacher support program;
2. Employ an individual to serve as a teacher support program coordinator;
3.
 - a. Select and train experienced teachers who will serve as mentors for first-year teachers and assist the first-year teachers with instructional skills development; or
 - b. If a school district or other employing entity listed in section 9 of this Act is not in need of mentors for its first-year teachers, select and train experienced teachers who will work with school district administrators and administrators from the other employing entities to identify the needs of the non-first-year teachers and help the non-first-year teachers address their particular needs through the use of:
 - (1) Research-validated interventions; and
 - (2) Proven instructional methods.

SECTION 7. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Availability of services.

The education standards and practices board may use any moneys it receives for the teacher support program to provide staff compensation, training, evaluation, and stipends for mentors and experienced teachers who assist first-year and non-first-year teachers participating in the program, and to pay for any other administrative expenses resulting from the program; provided, however, that the board may not expend more than five percent of the moneys for administrative purposes.

SECTION 8. A new section to chapter 15.1-18.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Teacher support program - Authorized service recipients.

The education standards and practices board may provide support services to teachers employed by:

1. School districts;
2. Special education units;
3. Area career and technology centers;
4. Regional education associations; and
5. Schools funded by the bureau of Indian education.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.1. High school graduation – Diploma requirements diploma - Minimum units.

Except as provided in section 15.1-21-02.3, before a school district, a nonpublic high school, or the center for distance education issues a high school diploma to a student, the student must have successfully completed the following twenty-two units of high school coursework:

1. ~~Four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;~~
2. ~~Three units of mathematics;~~
3. ~~Three units of science, including:~~
 - a. ~~One unit of physical science;~~
 - b. ~~One unit of biology; and~~
 - e. ~~(1) One unit of any other science; or~~
~~(2) Two one-half units of any other science;~~
4. ~~Three units of social studies, including:~~
 - a. ~~One unit of United States history;~~
 - b. ~~(1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or~~
~~(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and~~
 - e. ~~One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural~~

studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;

- 5. a. One unit of physical education; or
- b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
- 6. Three units of:
 - a. Foreign languages;
 - b. Native American languages;
 - c. Fine arts; or
 - d. Career and technical education courses; and
- 7. Any five additional units:
 - 1. The twenty-two units of high school coursework set forth in section 10 of this Act; and
 - 2. Any additional units of high school coursework required by the issuing entity.

SECTION 10. A new section to chapter 15.1-21 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

High school graduation - Minimum requirements.

Except as provided in section 15.1-21-02.3, the following twenty-two units of high school coursework constitute the minimum requirement for high school graduation:

- 1. Four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
- 2. Three units of mathematics;
- 3. Three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
- 4. Three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
- 5. a. One unit of physical education; or

- b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
- 6. Three units of:
 - a. Foreign languages;
 - b. Native American languages;
 - c. Fine arts; or
 - d. Career and technical education courses; and
- 7. Any five additional units.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.4. North Dakota career and technical education scholarship.

Any resident student who graduates from a high school during or after the 2010-11 school year is eligible to receive a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship provided the student ~~completes all requirements set forth in subsections 1 through 5 and subsection 7 of section 15.1-21-02.1 for a high school diploma and:~~

- 1. Completed four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
- 2. Completed three units of mathematics, including:
 - a. ~~Completes one~~One unit of algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, ~~in fulfillment of the mathematics requirement set forth in subsection 2 of section 15.1-21-02.1; and~~
 - b. ~~Completes two~~Two units of any other mathematics;
- 3. Completed three units of science, including:
 - a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
- 4. Completed three units of social studies, including:
 - a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
- 5. a. Completed one unit of physical education; or
b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
- 6. Completed:

- a. One unit selected from:
 - (1) Foreign languages;
 - (2) Native American languages;
 - (3) American sign language;
 - (4) Fine arts; or
 - (5) Career and technical education courses; and
 - b. Two units of a coordinated plan of study recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction; and
- ~~e-7.~~ Completed any five additional units, two of which must be in the area of career and technical education;
2. ~~Obtains a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit required for the diploma;~~
- 3-8. a. (1) ~~Obtains~~Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least ~~"B"~~3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based on all high school units in which the student was enrolled; and
- (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; or
- b. (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based only on the units required by subsections 1 through 7 of this section; and
- (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; and
- 4-9. ~~Receives~~Received:
- a. A composite score of at least twenty-four on an ACT; or
 - b. A score of at least five on each of three WorkKeys assessments recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.5. North Dakota academic scholarship.

Any resident student who graduates from a high school during or after the 2010-11 school year is eligible to receive a North Dakota academic scholarship provided the student ~~completes all requirements set forth in subsections 1 through 5 and subsection 7 of section 15.1-21-02.1 for a high school diploma and:~~

- 1. Completed four units of English language arts from a sequence that includes literature, composition, and speech;
- 2. Completed three units of mathematics, including:
 - a. ~~Completes one~~One unit of algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, ~~in fulfillment of the mathematics requirement set forth in subsection 2 of section 15.1-21-02.1; and~~

- b. ~~Completes one additional~~One unit of mathematics for which algebra II, as defined by the superintendent of public instruction, is a prerequisite; and
- e-3. ~~Completes~~Completed three units of science, including:
- a. One unit of physical science;
 - b. One unit of biology; and
 - c. (1) One unit of any other science; or
(2) Two one-half units of any other science;
4. Completed three units of social studies, including:
- a. One unit of United States history;
 - b. (1) One-half unit of United States government and one-half unit of economics; or
(2) One unit of problems of democracy; and
 - c. One unit or two one-half units of any other social studies, which may include civics, civilization, geography and history, multicultural studies, North Dakota studies, psychology, sociology, and world history;
5. a. Completed one unit of physical education; or
b. One-half unit of physical education and one-half unit of health;
6. a. Completed:
- (1) Two units of the same foreign or native American language;
 - (2) One unit of fine arts or career and technical educationAmerican sign language; and
- (3)b. One unit of a foreign or nativeselected from:
- (1) Foreign languages;
 - (2) Native American language, finelanguages;
 - (3) American sign language;
 - (4) Fine arts, or career; or
 - (5) Career and technical education;
2. Obtains a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit required for the diploma;
- 3-7. ObtainsCompleted any five additional units, one of which must be in the area of fine arts or career and technical education;
8. a. (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least "B"3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based on all high school units in which the student was enrolled; and
(2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit; or

- b. (1) Obtained a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 on a 4.0 grading scale, as determined by the superintendent of public instruction, based only on the units required by subsections 1 through 7 of this section; and
- (2) Obtained a grade of at least "C" in each unit or one-half unit;
- ~~4-9.~~ Received a composite score of at least twenty-four on an ACT; and
- ~~5-10.~~ a. Completed Fulfilled any one unit requirement set forth in subsections 1 through 7 of this section by means of an advanced placement course and examination; or
- b. Fulfilled any one-half unit requirement set forth in subsections 1 through 7 of this section by means of a dual-credit course.

SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-02.6 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-02.6. North Dakota scholarship - Amount - Applicability.

1. a. The state board of higher education shall provide to any student certified as being eligible by the superintendent of public instruction either a North Dakota academic scholarship or a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship in the amount of seven hundred fifty dollars for each semester during which the student is enrolled full time at an accredited institution of higher education in this state and maintains a cumulative grade point average of 2.75.
- b. The state board of higher education shall provide to any student certified as being eligible by the superintendent of public instruction either a North Dakota academic scholarship or a North Dakota career and technical education scholarship in the amount of five hundred dollars for each quarter during which the student is enrolled full time at an accredited institution of higher education in this state and maintains a cumulative grade point average of 2.75.
2. The state board shall monitor each scholarship recipient to ensure that the student meets the academic and other requirements of this section. Upon determining that a recipient student has failed to meet the requirements of this section, the board shall provide notification to the student within ten days.
- ~~2-3.~~ A student is not entitled to receive more than six thousand dollars under this section.
- ~~3-4.~~ The state board of higher education shall forward the scholarship directly to the institution in which the student is enrolled.
- ~~4-5.~~ a. (1) This section does not require a student to be enrolled in consecutive semesters.
- (2) This section does not require a student to be enrolled in consecutive quarters.
- b. However, a scholarship under this section is valid only for six academic years after the student's graduation from high school and may not be applied to graduate programs.
- ~~5-6.~~ A scholarship under this section is available to any eligible student who graduates from a high school in this state or from a high school in a bordering state under chapter 15.1-29.

7. For purposes of North Dakota scholarship eligibility under this section, "full-time" means enrollment in at least twelve credits during a student's first two semesters and enrollment in at least fifteen credits during each semester thereafter or enrollment in the equivalent number of credits, as determined by the state board of higher education, with respect to students in a quarter system.

SECTION 14. A new section to chapter 15.1-21 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota scholarship - Eligibility - One-time exception.

1. a. Notwithstanding section 15.1-21-02.6, if a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a semester is below 2.75, the board shall grant an exception and provide the North Dakota scholarship to which the student would otherwise be entitled for the next semester in which the student is enrolled full time. The exception provided by this section is applicable to a student only one time.
- b. If a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a semester is below 2.75 for a second time, the student is no longer eligible to receive any additional North Dakota academic or career and technical education scholarships.
2. a. Notwithstanding section 15.1-21-02.6, if a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a quarter is below 2.75, the board shall grant an exception and provide the North Dakota scholarship to which the student would otherwise be entitled for the next quarter in which the student is enrolled full time. The exception provided by this section is applicable to a student only one time.
- b. If a student's cumulative grade point average as determined by the state board of higher education at the conclusion of a quarter is below 2.75 for a second time, the student is no longer eligible to receive any additional North Dakota academic or career and technical education scholarships.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-08. Reading, mathematics, and science - Administration of test.

1. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall administer to public school students a test that is aligned to the state content and achievement standards in reading and mathematics. This test must be administered to all public school students in at least one grade level selected within each of the following grade spans: grades three through five; grades six through nine; and grades ten through twelve. Beginning no later than the 2005-06 school year and annually thereafter, the superintendent of public instruction shall administer the reading and mathematics test annually to all public school students in grades three, four, five, six, seven, eight, and eleven.~~
2. ~~Beginning no later than the 2007-08 school year and annually thereafter,~~ The superintendent of public instruction shall administer a test that is aligned to the state content and achievement standards in science. This test must be administered to all public school students in at least one grade level selected from three through five; in at least one grade level selected from six through nine; and in grade eleven. The superintendent of public instruction may not administer the grade eleven test after December first of each school year.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-18. Career interest inventory - Educational and career planning - Consultation.

1. A school district shall administer to students, once during their enrollment in grade seven or eight and once during their enrollment in grade nine or ten, a career interest inventory recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction.
2. At least once during the seventh or eighth grade, each school district shall arrange for students to participate in either an individual consultative process or a nine-week course, for the purpose of discussing the results of their career interest inventory, selecting high school courses appropriate to their educational pursuits and career interests, and developing individual high school education plans.
3. Each school district shall notify its high school students that, upon request, a student is entitled to receive a consultative review of the student's individual high school education plan at least once during each high school grade. Upon the request of a student, the school district shall provide the consultative review.
4. Each school district shall verify compliance with the requirements of this section at the time and in the manner required by the superintendent of public instruction.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-21-19 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-21-19. Summative assessment - Selection - Cost - Exemptions.

1. Except as otherwise provided, each public and nonpublic school student in grade eleven shall take the ACT, including the writing test, or three WorkKeys assessments recommended by the department of career and technical education and approved by the superintendent of public instruction. The student shall determine which summative assessment to take. ~~The student's school district of residence~~superintendent of public instruction is responsible for the cost of procuring and administering one summative assessment ~~and its administration~~ per student.
2. The student's career advisor or guidance counselor shall meet with the student to review the student's assessment results.
3. A school district superintendent or a school administrator in the case of a nonpublic school student may exempt a student from the requirements of this section if taking the test is not required by the student's individualized education program plan or if other special circumstances exist.
4. ~~If the superintendent of public instruction determines that the cost of the summative assessment and its administration can be reduced through use of a state procurement process, the superintendent shall work with the school districts to procure and arrange for the administration of the assessment and shall withhold each district's share of the total cost from any state aid otherwise payable to the district.~~At the time and in the manner determined by the superintendent of public instruction, each school district superintendent and each school administrator in the case of a nonpublic school shall report the number of eleventh grade students who:
 - a. Took the ACT, including the writing test;
 - b. Took the three WorkKeys assessments; and

- c. Were exempted from the requirements of this section, together with the reason for each exemption.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-22-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-22-01. Kindergarten - Establishment by board - Request by parent - Levy.

1. ~~Upon its own motion, the~~The board of a school district ~~may establish a free public kindergarten.~~
2. ~~If the board receives a written request to provide kindergarten from the parent of a student who will be enrolled in the kindergarten, the board shall either provide at least a half-day kindergarten program for the~~any student enrolled in the district or pay the tuition required for the student to attend ~~at least a half-day~~a kindergarten program in another school district.
- ~~3-2.~~ 2. The board of a school district that establishes a kindergarten under this section may levy a tax pursuant to subdivision p of subsection 1 of section 57-15-14.2.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-22-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-22-02. Public kindergarten - Requirements.

A school district operating a kindergarten:

1. May not employ an individual as a kindergarten teacher unless the individual is licensed to teach by the education standards and practices board or approved by the education standards and practices board;
2. Shall submit to the superintendent of public instruction and follow a developmentally appropriate curriculum;
3. Shall provide at least the equivalent of thirty full days of kindergarten instruction, on a half-day or full-day basis, as determined by the school board;
4. Shall provide for a kindergarten instructional calendar equal to at least fifty percent of the full-time instructional days required in accordance with section 15.1-06-04;
5. Shall apply all municipal and state health, fire, and safety requirements to the kindergarten; and
- ~~5-6.~~ 6. May not enroll a child who is not five years old before August first of the year of enrollment, unless the child will be five years old before December first and:
 - a. The child, by means of developmental and readiness screening instruments approved by the superintendent of public instruction and administered by the kindergarten operator, can demonstrate academic, social, and emotional readiness; or
 - b. The child has been enrolled in another approved kindergarten.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-03. Cost of education - Determination.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the educational cost per student.
2. In determining the educational cost per student, the superintendent may not use:
 - a. Capital outlay for buildings;
 - b. Capital outlay for sites;
 - c. Capital outlay for debt service;
 - d. Expenditures for school activities;
 - e. Expenditures for school lunch programs;
 - f. Expenditures for transportation costs, including schoolbuses; or
 - g. Expenditures for early childhood education.

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-03.1. ~~(Effective through June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.~~

1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;
 - b. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;
 - c. 0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;
 - d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
 - e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
 - g. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;
 - h. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;
 - i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
 - j. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of

- ~~public instruction are determined to be not proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
- ~~k: 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;~~
 - ~~l: 0.07 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;~~
 - ~~m: 0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be somewhat proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - ~~n: 0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09.1; and~~
 - ~~o: 0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.~~
2. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.~~

(Effective after June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.

1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;
 - b. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;
 - c. 0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;
 - d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
 - e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
 - (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and placed in the first of six categories of proficiency; and are
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
 - g. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
 - h. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~

- i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
- ~~j-h.~~ 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be ~~not more~~ proficient than students placed in the first of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the second of six categories of proficiency; and are
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
- k-i. 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;
- ~~h-j.~~ ~~0-070.~~10 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, if the district has fewer than one hundred students enrolled in average daily membership and the district consists of an area greater than two hundred seventy-five square miles [19424.9 hectares], provided that any school district consisting of an area greater than six hundred square miles [155399 hectares] and enrolling fewer than fifty students in average daily membership must be deemed to have an enrollment equal to fifty students in average daily membership;
- k. ~~0.073~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;
- ~~m-l.~~ 0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be ~~somewhat more~~ proficient ~~and are~~ than students placed in the second of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the third of six categories of proficiency;
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners; ~~and~~
 - (3) Have not been in the third of six categories of proficiency for more than three years;
- ~~n-m.~~ 0.025 the number of students representing that percentage of the total number of students in average daily membership which is equivalent to the three-year average percentage of students in grades three through eight who are eligible for free or reduced lunches under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act [42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.];
- n. ~~0.006~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in each public school in the district that:
- (1) Has acquired and is utilizing the PowerSchool student information system;
 - (2) Has acquired and is in the process of implementing the PowerSchool student information system; or
 - (3) Will acquire the PowerSchool student information system during the current school year, provided the acquisition is contractually demonstrated; and

- o. 0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09.1; and
 - p. ~~0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.~~
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-03.1. ~~(Effective through June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership – Determination.~~

- 1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;~~
 - b. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;~~
 - c. ~~0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;~~
 - d. ~~0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;~~
 - e. ~~0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - f. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;~~
 - g. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
 - h. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~
 - i. ~~0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;~~
 - j. ~~0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be not proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - k. ~~0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;~~
 - l. ~~0.07 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;~~
 - m. ~~0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of~~

- public instruction are determined to be somewhat proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
- n. ~~0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09-1; and~~
 - o. ~~0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.~~
2. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.~~

~~(Effective after June 30, 2011)~~ Weighted average daily membership - Determination.

1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;
 - b. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;
 - c. 0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;
 - d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
 - e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
 - (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and placed in the first of six categories of proficiency; and are
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
 - g. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
 - h. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~
 - i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
 - j. ~~0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:~~
 - (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be ~~not more~~ proficient than students placed in the first of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the second of six categories of proficiency; and are

- (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
- k.i. 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;
- t.j. ~~0.07~~ 0.10 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, if the district has fewer than one hundred students enrolled in average daily membership and the district consists of an area greater than two hundred seventy-five square miles [19424.9 hectares], provided that any school district consisting of an area greater than six hundred square miles [155399 hectares] and enrolling fewer than fifty students in average daily membership must be deemed to have an enrollment equal to fifty students in average daily membership;
- k. ~~0.079~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;
- m.l. 0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~en~~:
- (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be somewhat more proficient and are than students placed in the second of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the third of six categories of proficiency;
- (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners; and
- (3) Have not been in the third of six categories of proficiency for more than three years;
- n.m. 0.025 the number of students representing that percentage of the total number of students in average daily membership which is equivalent to the three-year average percentage of students in grades three through eight who are eligible for free or reduced lunches under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act [42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.];
- n. ~~0.006~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in each public school in the district that:
- (1) Has acquired and is utilizing the PowerSchool student information system;
- (2) Has acquired and is in the process of implementing the PowerSchool student information system; or
- (3) Will acquire the PowerSchool student information system during the current school year, provided the acquisition is contractually demonstrated; and
- o. 0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09.1; ~~and~~
- p. ~~0.002~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, ~~in order to support technology.~~
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-03.1. ~~(Effective through June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.~~

1. ~~For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:~~
 - a. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;~~
 - b. ~~1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;~~
 - c. ~~0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;~~
 - d. ~~0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;~~
 - e. ~~0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - f. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;~~
 - g. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
 - h. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~
 - i. ~~0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;~~
 - j. ~~0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be not proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - k. ~~0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;~~
 - l. ~~0.07 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;~~
 - m. ~~0.07 the number of full-time equivalent students who on a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be somewhat proficient and are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;~~
 - n. ~~0.004 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09-1; and~~
 - o. ~~0.002 the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.~~

2. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.~~

(Effective after June 30, 2011) Weighted average daily membership - Determination.

1. For each school district, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by:
 - a. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a migrant summer program;
 - b. 1.00 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an extended educational program in accordance with section 15.1-32-17;
 - c. 0.60 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a summer education program;
 - d. 0.50 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a home-based education program and monitored by the school district under chapter 15.1-23;
 - e. 0.30 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
 - (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be least proficient and placed in the first of six categories of proficiency; and are
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - f. 0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an alternative high school;
 - g. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated elementary school;~~
 - h. ~~0.25 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an isolated high school;~~
 - i. 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students attending school in a bordering state in accordance with section 15.1-29-01;
 - ~~j-h.~~ 0.20 the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
 - (1) On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be not more proficient than students placed in the first of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the second of six categories of proficiency; and are
 - (2) Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners;
 - k-l. 0.17 the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in an early childhood special education program;
 - j. 0.15 the number of full-time equivalent students in grades six through eight enrolled in an alternative education program for at least an average of fifteen hours per week;

- ~~h.k.~~ ~~0.070.10~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, if the district has fewer than one hundred students enrolled in average daily membership and the district consists of an area greater than two hundred seventy-five square miles [19424.9 hectares], provided that any school district consisting of an area greater than six hundred square miles [155399 hectares] and enrolling fewer than fifty students in average daily membership must be deemed to have an enrollment equal to fifty students in average daily membership;
- ~~l.~~ ~~0.079~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support the provision of special education services;
- ~~m.~~ ~~0.07~~ the number of full-time equivalent students who ~~are~~:
- ~~(1)~~ On a test of English language proficiency approved by the superintendent of public instruction are determined to be somewhat more proficient and are than students placed in the second of six categories of proficiency and therefore placed in the third of six categories of proficiency;
 - ~~(2)~~ Are enrolled in a program of instruction for English language learners; and
 - ~~(3)~~ Have not been in the third of six categories of proficiency for more than three years;
- ~~n.~~ ~~0.025~~ the number of students representing that percentage of the total number of students in average daily membership which is equivalent to the three-year average percentage of students in grades three through eight who are eligible for free or reduced lunches under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act [42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.];
- ~~o.~~ ~~0.006~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in each public school in the district that:
- ~~(1)~~ Has acquired and is utilizing the PowerSchool student information system;
 - ~~(2)~~ Has acquired and is in the process of implementing the PowerSchool student information system; or
 - ~~(3)~~ Will acquire the PowerSchool student information system during the current school year, provided the acquisition is contractually demonstrated; and
- ~~p.~~ ~~0.004~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership in a school district that is a participating member of a regional education association meeting the requirements of chapter 15.1-09.1; and
- ~~p.~~ ~~0.002~~ the number of students enrolled in average daily membership, in order to support technology.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's weighted average daily membership by adding the products derived under subsection 1 to the district's average daily membership.

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-04. Per student payment rate.

1. a. The per student payment rate to which each school district is entitled for the first year of the biennium is three thousand ~~two~~nine hundred ~~ten~~ dollars.
- b. The per student payment rate to which each school district is entitled for the second year of the biennium is three thousand ~~seven~~nine hundred ~~seventy-nine~~eighty dollars.
2. In order to determine the state aid payment to which each district is entitled, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply each district's weighted student units by the per student payment rate set forth in subsection 1.

SECTION 25. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-07.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-07.2. Baseline funding - Determination - Minimum and maximum allowable increases.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall determine each school district's baseline funding per weighted student unit by:
 - a. Adding together all state aid received by the district during the 2006-07 school year;
 - b. Subtracting the amount received by the district during the 2006-07 school year for transportation aid, special education excess cost reimbursements, special education contracts, prior year funding adjustments, and per student payments for participation in educational associations governed by joint powers agreements; and
 - c. Dividing the amount determined under subdivision b by the district's 2007-08 weighted student units.
2. a. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, for the 2009-10 school year, is at least equal to one hundred eight percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
- b. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, for each school year after the 2009-10 school year, is at least equal to one hundred twelve and one-half percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
3. a. The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, less any amount received as equity payments under section 15.1-27-11 per weighted student unit, does not exceed, for the ~~2009-10~~2011-12 school year, one hundred ~~twenty~~forty-two percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.
- b. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall ensure that the total amount of state aid payable to a district per weighted student unit, less any amount received as equity payments under section 15.1-27-11 per weighted student unit, does not exceed, for each school year after the 2009-10 school year, one hundred thirty-four percent of the baseline funding per weighted student unit, as established in subsection 1.~~

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-11. Equity payments.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall:
 - a. Divide the imputed taxable valuation of the state by the total average daily membership of all school districts in the state in order to determine the state average imputed taxable valuation per student.
 - b. Divide the imputed taxable valuation of each school district by the district's total average daily membership in order to determine each district's average imputed taxable valuation per student.
2. If a school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than ninety percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the valuation deficiency by:
 - a. Determining the difference between ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student and the district's average imputed taxable valuation per student; and
 - b. Multiplying that difference by the district's total average daily membership.
3. Except as provided in subsection 4, the equity payment to which a district is entitled under this section equals the district's valuation deficiency multiplied by the lesser of:
 - a. The district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008; or
 - b. One hundred eighty-five mills.
4.
 - a. The equity payment to which a district is entitled may not exceed the district's taxable valuation multiplied by its general fund levy for the taxable year 2008.
 - b. If a district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008 is less than one hundred eighty-five mills, the superintendent of public instruction shall subtract the district's general fund levy for the taxable year 2008 from one hundred eighty-five mills, multiply the result by the district's taxable valuation, and subtract that result from the equity payment to which the district is otherwise entitled.
 - c. If a district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than fifty percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student, the payment to which the district is entitled under this section may not be less than twenty percent of the statewide imputed taxable valuation per student times the school district's average daily membership, multiplied by one hundred eighty-five mills.
5. In determining the amount to which a school district is entitled under this section, the superintendent of public instruction may not include any payments received by the district as a result of Public Law No. 81-874 [64 Stat. 1100; 20 U.S.C. 236 et seq.] and may not include in the district's average daily membership students who are dependents of members of the armed forces and students who are dependents of civilian employees of the department of defense.
6. In determining the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student for purposes of this section, the superintendent of public instruction may not include:

- a. Any school district, which if included in the calculation would have an imputed taxable valuation per student that is three times greater than the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student; and
 - b. Any school district, which if included in the calculation would have an imputed taxable valuation per student that is less than one-fifth of the statewide average imputed taxable valuation per student.
7. For purposes of this section:
- a. "General fund levy" includes a district's high school transportation levy and its high school tuition levy.
 - b. "Imputed taxable valuation" means the valuation of all taxable real property in the district plus:
 - (1) An amount determined by dividing seventy percent of the district's mineral and tuition revenue, revenue from payments in lieu of property taxes on distribution and transmission of electric power, revenue from payments in lieu of taxes from electricity generated from sources other than coal, and revenue received on account of the leasing of lands acquired by the United States for flood control, navigation, and allied purposes in accordance with 33 U.S.C. 701c-3 by the district's general fund mill levy for the taxable year 2008; and
 - (2) An amount determined by dividing the district's revenue from mobile home taxes and telecommunications taxes by the district's general fund mill levy for the taxable year 2008.
 - c. "Mineral revenue" includes all revenue from county sources reported under code 2000 of the North Dakota school district financial accounting and reporting manual as developed by the superintendent of public instruction in accordance with section 15.1-02-08.
 - d. "Tuition revenue" includes all revenue reported under code 1300 of the North Dakota school district financial accounting and reporting manual as developed by the superintendent of public instruction in accordance with section 15.1-02-08. "Tuition revenue" does not include tuition income received specifically for the operation of an educational program provided at a residential treatment facility.

SECTION 27. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-23 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-27-23. Weather or other emergency conditions - Closure of schools - State aid payments to school districts.

- 1. If because of severe weather or other emergency conditions a public school or school district remains closed or provides less than a full day of instruction, the public school or school district shall make every effort to reschedule classes so that students receive at least ~~one hundred~~ seventy-three ~~the number of full instructional days of instruction required by section 15.1-06-04.~~
- 2. Any public school or school district for which the rescheduling of classes would create undue hardship may request that, for purposes of calculating state aid payments to the ~~school or~~ school district, the governor waive the rescheduling in whole or in part.
- 3. The governor may not grant a waiver for less than a full day of instruction. However, if a public school or school district closes for only a portion of its regular schoolday, the hours during which the school or school district is closed may be added together to determine the number

of additional full days of instruction that may be waived under this section.

SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-27-35.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

~~15.1-27-35.3. (Effective through June 30, 2011) Payments to school districts -- Unobligated general fund balance -- Report to legislative council.~~

1. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars. Beginning July 1, 2008, the superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.~~
2. ~~In making the determination required by subsection 1, the superintendent of public instruction may not include in a district's unobligated general fund balance any moneys that:~~
 - a. ~~(1) Were received by the district during the school year ending June 30, 2009, on account of the leasing of lands acquired by the United States for flood control, navigation, and allied purposes in accordance with 33 U.S.C. 701c-3; and~~
 - ~~(2) Exceeded the amount received by the district during the school year ending June 30, 2008, for the purpose stated in paragraph 1;~~
 - b. ~~Were received directly by the district from the United States government in accordance with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009; or~~
 - c. ~~Were received by the district as supplemental one-time grants under section 52 of S.L. 2009, ch. 175.~~
3. ~~Any district having more than fifty thousand dollars excluded in the determination of its ending fund balance, as required by subsection 2, shall provide a report to the legislative council. The report, which must be presented at the time and in the manner directed by the legislative council, must address how the money was expended, including the number of mills by which the district was able to decrease its property taxes, if such was a permitted use.~~

~~(Effective after June 30, 2011) Payments to school districts - Unobligated general fund balance.~~

1. ~~The superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of fifty percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars. Beginning July 1, 2008, the superintendent of public instruction shall determine the amount of payments due a school district and shall subtract from that the amount by which the unobligated general fund balance of the district on the preceding June thirtieth is in excess of forty-five percent of its actual expenditures, plus twenty thousand dollars.~~
2. ~~In making the determination required by subsection 1, the superintendent of public instruction may not include in a district's unobligated general~~

fund balance any moneys that were received by the district from the federal education jobs fund program.

SECTION 29. A new section to chapter 15.1-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Distribution of remaining moneys.

If any money remains in the grants - state aid line item after the superintendent complies with all statutory payment obligations imposed for a biennium, the superintendent shall use the remaining moneys to provide additional per student payments on a prorated basis according to the latest available average daily membership of each school district.

SECTION 30. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-36-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-36-02. School construction projects - Loans.

1. The board of university and school lands may authorize the use of moneys in the coal development trust fund established pursuant to section 21 of article X of the Constitution of North Dakota and subsection 1 of section 57-62-02 to provide school construction loans, as described in this chapter. The outstanding principal balance of loans under this chapter may not exceed fifty million dollars. The board may adopt policies and rules governing school construction loans.
2. In order to be eligible for a loan under this section, the board of a school district shall:
 - a. Propose a construction project with a cost of at least one million dollars and an expected utilization of at least thirty years;
 - b. Obtain the approval of the superintendent of public instruction for the construction project under section 15.1-36-01; and
 - c. Submit to the superintendent of public instruction an application containing all information deemed necessary by the superintendent, including potential alternative sources or methods of financing the construction project.
3. The superintendent of public instruction shall give priority to any district that meets the requirements for receipt of an equity payment under section 15.1-27-11.
4. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is less than eighty percent of the state average imputed valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
 - a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~eight~~twelve million dollars or eighty percent of the actual project cost;
 - b. An interest rate discount equal to at least ~~fifty~~one hundred but not more than two hundred ~~fifty~~ basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
5. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is equal to at least eighty percent but less than ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
 - a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~seventen~~ten million dollars or seventy percent of the actual project cost;

- b. An interest rate buydown equal to at least ~~forty~~ fiftyone hundred but not more than two hundred fifty basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
6. If an eligible school district's imputed taxable valuation per student is equal to at least ninety percent of the state average imputed taxable valuation per student, the district is entitled to receive:
- a. A school construction loan equal to the lesser of ~~two~~ four million ~~five-hundred thousand~~ dollars or thirty percent of the actual project cost;
 - b. An interest rate discount equal to at least fiftyone hundred but not more than two hundred fifty basis points below the prevailing tax-free bond rates; and
 - c. A term of repayment that may extend up to twenty years.
7. The board of a school district may submit its loan application to the superintendent of public instruction before or after receiving authorization of a bond issue in accordance with chapter 21-03. If the vote to authorize a bond issue precedes the application for a loan, the application must be acted upon by the superintendent expeditiously but no later than one hundred eighty days from the date it is received by the superintendent.
8. The superintendent of public instruction shall consider each loan application in the order it received approval under section 15.1-36-01.
9. If the superintendent of public instruction approves the loan, the superintendent may determine the loan amount, the term of the loan, and the interest rate, in accordance with the requirements of this section.
10. The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules governing school construction loans.
11. For purposes of this section, a construction project means the purchase, lease, erection, or improvement of any structure or facility by a school board, provided the acquisition or activity is within a school board's authority.

SECTION 31. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-37-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-37-01. Early childhood education program - Approval.

1. Any person or school district operating an early childhood education program may request approval of the program from the superintendent of public instruction. The superintendent shall approve an early childhood education program if the program:
 - ~~1-a.~~ 4-a. Is taught by individuals who are licensed to teach in early childhood education by the education standards and practices board;
 - ~~2-b.~~ 2-b. Follows a developmentally appropriate curriculum; ~~and~~
 - ~~3-c.~~ 3-c. Is in compliance with all municipal and state health, fire, and safety requirements; and
 - d. Limits its enrollment to children who have reached the age of four before August first in the year of enrollment.
2. ~~Per student funding will not be provided to individuals or school districts offering a prekindergarten. In determining the state aid payments to which a school district is entitled, the superintendent of public instruction may~~

not count any student enrolled in a regular early childhood education program.

SECTION 32. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 15.1-37-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The North Dakota early childhood education council consists of:
 - a. A chairman appointed by the governor;
 - b. The superintendent of public instruction, or the superintendent's designee;
 - c. The state health officer, or the officer's designee;
 - d. The director of the department of human services, or the director's designee;
 - e. The North Dakota head start - state collaboration administrator, or the administrator's designee;
 - f. The commissioner of higher education, or the commissioner's designee;
 - g. The commissioner of commerce, or the commissioner's designee;
 - h. The chairman of the senate education committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - ~~h.i.~~ The chairman of the house of representatives education committee, or the chairman's designee; and
 - i.j. The following gubernatorial appointees:
 - (1) The superintendent of a school district having at least one thousand students in average daily membership;
 - (2) The superintendent of a school district having fewer than one thousand students in average daily membership;
 - (3) The superintendent of a school district headquartered on a reservation or including reservation land within its boundaries;
 - (4) ~~The principal of a school district;~~
 - (5) ~~An individual employed as an elementary school teacher;~~
 - (6) An individual representing a non-religious-based provider of preschoolearly childhood education;
 - ~~(7)~~(5) An individual representing a religious-based provider of preschoolearly childhood education;
 - ~~(8)~~(6) An individual representing a center-based licensed child care provider;
 - ~~(9)~~(7) An individual representing a home-based licensed child care provider;
 - ~~(10)~~(8) An individual representing a reservation-based head start program;
 - ~~(11)~~(9) An elected member of a school board;

~~(12)(10)~~ The parent of a child not yet enrolled in elementary school; ~~and~~

~~(13)(11)~~ The parent of a child with ~~special needs~~ disabilities not yet enrolled in elementary school; ~~and~~

(12) An individual representing children with disabilities.

SECTION 33. AMENDMENT. Section 15.1-37-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

15.1-37-03. Council - Duties.

The council shall:

1. Review the ~~delivery~~ availability and provision of early childhood education, care, and services in this state;
2. ~~Conduct a needs assessment;~~
3. ~~Review early childhood education standards and propose revisions to the standards as needed;~~
4. ~~Review~~ Identify opportunities for public and private sector collaboration in the ~~delivery~~ provision of early childhood education, care, and services in this state;
5. ~~Develop a comprehensive plan governing the delivery of early childhood education in this state; and~~
- 6-3. Identify ways to assist with the recruitment and retention of individuals interested in working as providers of early childhood education, care, and services, including training and continuing education or professional development opportunities;
4. Seek the advice and guidance of individuals who are uniquely familiar with the nature, scope, and associated challenges of providing early childhood education, care, and services in geographically and socioeconomically diverse settings, and develop recommendations pertaining to the short-term and longer-term improvement and expansion of early childhood education, care, and services in this state; and
5. Provide a biennial report regarding its ~~activities~~ findings and recommendations to the governor and the legislative ~~council~~ assembly.

SECTION 34. APPROPRIATION - SCHOOL DISTRICT RAPID ENROLLMENT GROWTH - GRANTS. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the oil and gas impact grant fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$5,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of providing a grant to any school district that can demonstrate rapid enrollment growth, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013.

1. If the number of full-time equivalent students enrolled in a school district has increased by at least seven percent annually and if that increase is equal to at least twenty-five full-time equivalent students, as demonstrated by the district's September tenth fall enrollment report, the district is entitled to receive a grant equal to the per student payment provided for in section 15.1-27-04 multiplied by the actual increase in its full-time equivalent student enrollment.
2. If the amount of the appropriation provided for in this section is insufficient to meet the obligations of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the payment based on the percentage of the total amount to which each school district is entitled.

3. The superintendent of public instruction may not expend more than \$2,500,000 in grants under this section during the first year of the biennium.
4. Any district that is precluded from receiving state aid under section 15.1-27-35.3 is not eligible to receive a grant under this section.

SECTION 35. APPROPRIATION - GEARING UP FOR KINDERGARTEN.

There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$625,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the superintendent of public instruction for the purpose of supporting the gearing up for kindergarten program provided by the North Dakota state university extension service, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013. The North Dakota state university extension service may use up to \$125,000 of the amount appropriated for administrative purposes.

SECTION 36. TRANSPORTATION GRANTS - DISTRIBUTION.

1. During each year of the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the payment to which each school district is entitled based on the state transportation formula as it existed on June 30, 2001, except that the superintendent shall provide reimbursement at the rate of:
 - a. One dollar and three cents per mile for schoolbuses having a capacity of ten or more passengers;
 - b. Forty-six cents per mile for vehicles having a capacity of nine or fewer passengers;
 - c. Forty-six cents per mile, provided:
 - (1) The student being transported is a student with a disability, as defined in chapter 15.1-32;
 - (2) The student's individualized education program plan requires that the student attend a public or a nonpublic school located outside the student's school district of residence;
 - (3) The student is transported by an adult member of the student's family;
 - (4) The student is transported in a vehicle furnished by the student's parents;
 - (5) The student's transportation is paid for by the student's parents; and
 - (6) The reimbursement does not exceed two round trips daily between the student's home and school.
 - d. Forty-six cents per mile, one way, provided:
 - (1) The student being transported resides more than two miles from the public school that the student attends;
 - (2) The student is transported by an adult member of the student's family;
 - (3) The student is transported in a vehicle furnished by the student's parents; and
 - (4) The student's transportation is paid for by the student's parents; and

- e. Twenty-six cents per student for each one-way trip.
2. The superintendent of public instruction shall use the latest available student enrollment count in each school district in applying the provisions of subsection 1.
3. If any moneys provided for transportation payments in the grants transportation line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly, remain after application of the formula provided for in this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall prorate the remaining amounts according to the percentage of the total transportation formula amount to which each school district is entitled.
4. This section does not authorize the reimbursement of any costs incurred in providing transportation for student attendance at extracurricular activities or events.

SECTION 37. ISOLATED SCHOOLS - TRANSITION PAYMENTS.

1. If during the 2010-11 school year a school district received payments as a result of section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011, and if that district is not eligible for the factor established under subdivision j of subsection 1 of section 15.1-27-03.1, the district is entitled to the following transition payments:
 - a. For the 2011-12 and 2012-13 school years, an amount equal to that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011;
 - b. For the 2013-14 school year, an amount equal to seventy-five percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011;
 - c. For the 2014-15 school year, an amount equal to fifty percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011; and
 - d. For the 2015-16 school year, an amount equal to twenty-five percent of that which the district would have received under section 15.1-27-15, as the section existed on June 30, 2011.
2. Upon the closure of a school that met the definition of isolated under section 15.1-27-15, as it existed on June 30, 2011, the superintendent of public instruction shall cease to provide to the district the transition payments established under subsection 1.

SECTION 38. ALTERNATIVE MIDDLE SCHOOL - GRANTS.

1. During the second year of the 2011-13 biennium, the superintendent of public instruction shall expend up to \$300,000 from the grants - other grants line item in the appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly, for the purpose of providing a grant to any school district that offers an alternative education program for students enrolled in grades six through eight.
2. In order to determine the amount that a school district may receive under this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall multiply by a factor of .15 the number of students in grades six through eight who are enrolled in an alternative education program for at least fifteen hours per week.
3. If the expenditure authorized in this section is insufficient for providing grants to all eligible school districts, the superintendent of public

instruction shall prorate the grants based on the percentage of the total to which each school district is entitled.

SECTION 39. USE OF NEW MONEY - TEACHER COMPENSATION INCREASES - REPORTS TO THE LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT.

1. During the 2011-13 biennium, the board of each school district shall use an amount equal to at least seventy percent of all new money received by the district for per student payments to increase the compensation paid to teachers and to provide compensation to teachers who begin employment with the district on or after July 1, 2011.
2. For purposes of this section, the superintendent of public instruction shall calculate the amount of new money available during the 2011-13 biennium by:
 - a. Determining the total amount of dollars in the grants - state school aid line item in the 2011-13 appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-second legislative assembly and subtracting from that amount:
 - (1) Equity payments;
 - (2) Regional education association moneys and grants;
 - (3) PowerSchool acquisition, implementation, and utilization moneys; and
 - (4) Contingent distributions;
 - b. Determining the total amount of dollars in the grants - state school aid line item and in the grants - supplemental line item in the 2009-11 appropriation bill for the superintendent of public instruction, as approved by the sixty-first legislative assembly and subtracting from that amount:
 - (1) Equity payments;
 - (2) Regional education association moneys and grants;
 - (3) Technology support payments; and
 - (4) Contingent distributions; and
 - c. Subtracting the amount arrived at under subdivision b from the amount arrived at under subdivision a.
3. School districts providing educational services under a cooperative agreement approved by the superintendent of public instruction must, for purposes of this section, be treated as a single district.
4.
 - a. This section does not apply to a school district if the board of the school district, after a public hearing at which public testimony and documentary evidence are accepted, determines in its discretion and by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members of the board that complying with subsection 1 would place the school district in the position of having insufficient fiscal resources to meet the school district's other obligations.
 - b. Within ten days of the vote required by subdivision a, the school board shall notify the superintendent of public instruction of its action and shall file a report detailing the grounds for its determination and action.

- c. The superintendent of public instruction shall report all notices received under this subsection to the legislative management.

SECTION 40. EDUCATION FUNDING AND TAXATION COMMITTEE - CREATION - STUDY.

1. The education funding and taxation committee consists of the following eight members:
 - a. The house majority leader or the leader's designee selected from among the members of the house education committee or the house finance and taxation committee;
 - b. The house minority leader or the leader's designee selected from among the members of the house education committee or the house finance and taxation committee;
 - c. The senate majority leader or the leader's designee selected from among the members of the senate education committee or the senate finance and taxation committee;
 - d. The senate minority leader or the leader's designee selected from among the members of the senate education committee or the senate finance and taxation committee;
 - e. The chairman of the house education committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - f. The chairman of the house finance and taxation committee, or the chairman's designee;
 - g. The chairman of the senate education committee, or the chairman's designee; and
 - h. The chairman of the senate finance and taxation committee, or the chairman's designee.
2. The chairman of the legislative management shall select one from among the voting members to serve as the chairman of the committee.
3. The committee shall operate according to the statutes and procedure governing the operation of other legislative management interim committees.
4. The committee shall examine short-term and longer-term state and local involvement in funding elementary and secondary education. The committee shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the legislative management.

SECTION 41. ADULT EDUCATION - STUDY. During the 2011-12 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the provision and funding of adult education. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the legislative management.

SECTION 42. ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION - MIDDLE SCHOOL - DATA COLLECTION - REPORT.

1. The superintendent of public instruction shall collect data regarding the provision of services to students in grades six through eight who are enrolled in an alternative education program for at least an average of fifteen hours per week. The data must include:

- a. The number of school districts offering alternative education programs to students in grades six through eight;
 - b. The number of students in grades six through eight who are enrolled in alternative education programs;
 - c. The number of students in grades six through eight who are enrolled in alternative education programs and who are eligible for free or reduced lunches under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act [42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.];
 - d. The average number of hours per week that students in grades six through eight are spending in alternative education programs;
 - e. A quantification of the students' academic accomplishments; and
 - f. Any reductions in the number of students enrolled in alternative high schools.
2. Before October 1, 2012, the superintendent of public instruction shall report the data to the legislative management.

SECTION 43. REPEAL. Section 5 of this Act and sections 15.1-18.2-01, 15.1-18.2-02, and 15.1-18.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code are repealed.

SECTION 44. REPEAL. Section 15.1-27-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

SECTION 45. EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 22 of this Act becomes effective on July 1, 2012. Section 43 of this Act becomes effective on July 1, 2013.

SECTION 46. EFFECTIVE DATE - EXPIRATION DATE. Section 23 of this Act is effective on July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2015, and after that date is ineffective.

SECTION 47. EMERGENCY. Sections 27 and 40 of this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2150 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1011, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach, Wanzek, O'Connell and Reps. Kempenich, Thoreson, Glassheim) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1327-1328, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1011 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1327 and 1328 of the House Journal and pages 1059 and 1060 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1011 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "patrol" insert "; and to provide for a legislative management study"

Page 1, replace lines 10 through 16 with:

"Administration	\$2,926,419	\$233,423	\$3,159,842
Field operations	37,198,354	4,007,915	41,206,269
Law enforcement training academy	<u>1,496,942</u>	<u>105,546</u>	<u>1,602,488</u>
Total all funds	\$41,621,715	\$4,346,884	\$45,968,599
Less estimated income	<u>10,893,730</u>	<u>631,595</u>	<u>11,525,325</u>

Total general fund	\$30,727,985	\$3,715,289	\$34,443,274
Full-time equivalent positions	194.00	0.00	194.00"

Page 2, replace line 1 with:

"Weigh station repairs	100,000	0"
------------------------	---------	----

Page 2, replace line 3 with:

"Total all funds	\$280,000	\$1,237,000"
------------------	-----------	--------------

Page 2, replace line 5 with:

"Total general fund	\$280,000	\$1,076,000"
---------------------	-----------	--------------

Page 2, line 11, replace "\$4,849,220" with "\$5,025,762"

Page 2, after line 22, insert:

"SECTION 5. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - HIGHWAY PATROL TRAINING ACADEMY. During the 2011-12 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of relocating the highway patrol training academy or portions of the training academy. The study, if conducted, must review options for relocating the training academy, options for relocating the emergency operations vehicle training course, and options for constructing a highway patrol shooting range. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation needed to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-third legislative assembly."

ReNUMBER accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1011 - Highway Patrol - Conference Committee Action

	Executive Budget	House Version	Conference Committee Changes	Conference Committee Version	Senate Version	Comparison to Senate
Administration	\$3,159,842	\$3,157,382	\$2,460	\$3,159,842	\$3,162,302	(\$2,460)
Field operations	41,539,957	40,258,516	947,753	41,206,269	42,019,826	(813,557)
Law Enforcement Training Academy	5,692,488	1,601,309	1,179	1,602,488	3,593,669	(1,991,181)
Total all funds	\$50,392,287	\$45,017,207	\$951,392	\$45,968,599	\$48,775,797	(\$2,807,198)
Less estimated income	12,100,404	11,348,783	176,542	11,525,325	11,878,449	(353,124)
General fund	\$38,291,883	\$33,668,424	\$774,850	\$34,443,274	\$36,897,348	(\$2,454,074)
FTE	197.00	191.00	3.00	194.00	197.00	(3.00)

Department No. 504 - Highway Patrol - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	Restores Funding for State Fleet Services Mileage Rates ¹	Restores Trooper Positions ²	Adds Funding for Vacant FTE Positions ³	Removes Funding for Weigh Station Repairs ⁴	Total Conference Committee Changes
Administration	\$2,460				\$2,460
Field operations	229,869	567,884	400,000	(250,000)	947,753
Law Enforcement Training Academy	1,179				1,179
Total all funds	\$233,508	\$567,884	\$400,000	(\$250,000)	\$951,392
Less estimated income	51,045	73,497	52,000	0	176,542
General fund	\$182,463	\$494,387	\$348,000	(\$250,000)	\$774,850
FTE	0.00	3.00	0.00	0.00	3.00

¹ Funding for State Fleet Services mileage is restored to reflect an estimated mileage rate of 61 cents per mile for Highway Patrol vehicles. The executive recommendation provided funding for an estimated mileage rate of 61 cents per mile, the House reduced funding to reflect an estimated mileage rate of 58 cents per mile, and the Senate provided funding to reflect an estimated mileage rate of 64 cents per mile.

² Three FTE trooper positions and related funding removed by the House are restored. The Senate also restored the positions.

³ Funding is added to allow the Highway Patrol to fill vacant FTE positions for which funding is currently not available.

⁴ Funding added by the House for weigh station repairs is removed. The Senate version did not remove the funding.

This amendment also:

- Adjusts Section 2 regarding one-time funding for the Highway Patrol.
- Adjusts Section 3 regarding the amount of funding provided to the Highway Patrol from the highway tax distribution fund.
- Provides for a Legislative Management study of options to relocate the Highway Patrol training academy or portions of the academy.

Engrossed HB 1011 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1134, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Sorvaag, Schaible, Nelson and Reps. Grande, Streyle, Amerman) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1510-1514 and place HB 1134 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1134 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

The Senate stood adjourned pursuant to Senator Christmann's motion.

William R. Horton, Secretary

